

**NOTE** eDART Process Control Software version 10 is compatible ONLY with the following touchscreen: Model: 1715L, MFG Part #: E603162, CDW Part #: 1994217

## Contents

#### Basic Setup with eDART<sup>®</sup> Software

Start Machine	4
Create New Machine	5
Placing Sensors	6
Configuring Sensors	7
Testing Inputs/Outputs	13
Modify Existing Machine	21
Choose Pre-Existing Mold	22
Create New Mold	23
Sensor Assignment/Placement	24
Configuring Sensors in the Mold	26
Modify Existing Mold	32
Setup Process Overview	33
Job Overview	37
Cycle Graph	39
Diagnostics	44

Remote Access & Viewing th	е
eDART	45
Remote Access	46
Viewing the e <b>DART</b>	<b>46</b>
Making the Connection	46
Viewing the Current Process	48
eDART Process Setup	57
Select Existing Process	58
Create New Process	59
Alarm Limits	61
Remove Alarm	63
Adjust Alarm Levels Automatically	64
Adjust Alarm Levels Manually	65
Sorting Actions	66
Control Settings	67
Excessive Reject Tab	69

## **Contents** continued

### eDART Overview Screen

**70** 

Overview	71
Error Display	72
Process Match Variable	73
Cycle History	74
Options Tab	75
Quality Sampling Tool	76
Process Settings	77
Velocity to Pressure Transfer Tool	78
Saving Master Setup	82
	04
Add Note Tool	84
Add Note Tool Cycle Graph	85
	-
Cycle Graph	85
<b>Cycle Graph</b> Cycle Graph	85
<b>Cycle Graph</b> Cycle Graph Graph Control Menu Auto Scale	<b>85</b> 86
<b>Cycle Graph</b> Cycle Graph Graph Control Menu Auto Scale Curves	<b>85</b> 86 88
<b>Cycle Graph</b> Cycle Graph Graph Control Menu Auto Scale Curves Set Fill Volume at Cursor	<b>85</b> 86 88 88
<b>Cycle Graph</b> Cycle Graph Graph Control Menu Auto Scale Curves Set Fill Volume at Cursor Set Volume Zero at Cursor	<b>85</b> 86 88 88 88

Summary Graph	96
Summary Graph	97
Auto Scale All Curves	98
Add A Curve	98
Remove All Curves	99
Add Note at Cursor	100
Individual Curve Configuratio	n 101
eDART Settings Button	102
eDART Settings Button	103
Manage Machines	104
Manage Molds/Setups	104
Configure <b>eDART</b>	106
Networking Setup	107
Serial Ports	109
eDART Security	110
Security	111
Configure Groups	112
Configure Users	113
Change Password or Security	y Level
Log Files and Raw Data 115	Viewer
	116
Audit Log	
Audit Log Diagnostic Page	117
•	117 118



## Basic Setup with eDART<sup>®</sup> Software

This section walks you through the setup for the software for the *eDART*.

#### In This Chapter

- 4 Start Machine
- 5 Create New Machine
- 6 Placing Sensors
- 7 Configuring Sensors
- **13** Testing Inputs/Outputs
- 21 Modify Existing Machine
- 22 Choose Pre-Existing Mold
- 23 Create New Mold
- 24 Sensor Assignment/ Placement
- 26 Configuring Sensors in the Mold
- 32 Modify Existing Mold
- 33 Setup Process Overview
- 37 Job Overview
- 39 Cycle Graph
- 44 Diagnostics

11/20/2023 Rev.E.6.4

### **Start Machine**

The *eDART* allows for many Machine, Mold, and Process setups to be stored in the memory for future runs. It is necessary to set up the Mold or Machine only once, the first time that it is started. Machine input, output configurations and the Machine size information are stored in the Machine file. Mold Sensor locations are stored in the Mold file. Alarm Limits and diverter settings are stored in the Process folder.

Always choose the Machine name from the Drop-down menu if it already exists. Only create a new Machine after checking for an existing Machine setup.

Once a Machine is created there is no need to set it up again. The *eDART* will remember all of the configurations for the machine. The Sequence Module is a Machine Identifier and will automatically select the Machine from the Machine Drop-down menu when connected to the system.



A: Click on the "Machines" Button on the *eDART* Home Page.



- **B:** If the Machine is in the list click on it to select.
- **C:** If the Machine is not in the list click on "Create New Machine".
- **D:** The selected Machine will be highlighted and have a check mark beside the name.

If a Machine is selected from the drop-down menu the Machine Name will show on the Machine button.

## **Create New Machine**

When Create New Machine is selected the *eDART* will step through the Machine Creation Process. The first window will show the "Basic" tab. Do not use the Create new Machine Button if the Machine exists in the drop down menu. Instead, click on it to select.

Machine Setup S	tep 1 of 6				$\bigotimes$
BASIC	INPUTS	TEST INPUTS	OUTPUTS	TEST OUTPUTS	SUMMARY
		Basic Machi Name Machine and ir			
		Machine Number/Name: Arburg Screw Diameter: 1,	10 in 🔻		
ВАСК	OUNDO			CANCEL	

	LE-R-50 - Stroke Encoder
$\diamond$	Proximity Switch
(	Hydraulic Sensor
ė	Pressure Sensor
<del>~~~</del>	Analog Input
●1 ● <sup>1</sup>	OR2-D
R	Delta Pressure Sensor
лл	ID-7
D	Mold Deflection
J	Temperature Sensor

Sensor Icon Legend

## **Placing Sensors**

ĺ	Machine Setup	Step 2 of 6				$\bigotimes$
	BASIC	INPUTS	TEST INPUTS	OUTPUTS	TEST OUTPUTS	SUMMARY
			Machine Inp Assign Machine sensors		i	
A	Available Sensor	Position/	Velocity		Pressure	
$\smile$	SN: 0506000 <b>404:1</b> IA1-D-VI	B₽			C	
			e Signal (107) N: 05040 00550 alue: N/A		D Other Sens	ors
	ВАСК	OUNDO			CANCEL	NEXT

- A: Available Sensor List Drag and drop sensors from the Available Sensor list into their correct locations. When a sensor is held over a location the window will open and allow correct placement of sensor within the location.
- **B:** Drag the LE-R-50 or analog input modules connected for screw position into this box. See Position/Velocity section for details.
- **C:** Drag the Hydraulic sensor or the analog input module connected for injection pressure into this box. See Injection Pressure section for details.
- D: Drag any other Machine sensors that are connected to the Machine into this box.



D

**E:** When you connect the Sequence Module to the *eDART* it will automatically assign it to the Sequence Signal area. See Sequence Module Config for more information.

All sensors attached to the system will automatically display in one of the Available Sensor lists. Mold sensors will show up in the Mold Available Sensor list and Machine Sensors will show up in the Machine Available Sensor List from the setup portion of the Job creation process.

The Sequence Module is a Machine Identifier for the *eDART* system. After the initial setup for the Machine the *eDART* will automatically display the Machine Name on the start page.

## **Configuring Sensors**

#### **Position/Velocity For LER-50**

When the Position/Velocity sensor is placed over the Position/Velocity location on the machine, a window will open up to allow the sensors to be dropped into the correct location.

		Position/Velocity		X
		Position		
	A)	SN: 0460000 <b>136:1</b> Value: 0 in	0	
		Velocity		
(	В	SN: 0460000 <b>136:2</b> Value: 0 in/sec.	0	

- A: Drop the LE-R-50 sensor output 1 from the "Available Sensor" List into the Position location. Select the screw direction. (see Set Screw Direction)
- B: The Velocity sensor will automatically assign.

#### **Position/Velocity From Analog Input**

	: 0460000 <b>136:1</b>	0	
Wa Va	lue: 0 in	$\mathbf{O}($	В
/elocity			

- A: Drag analog input connected to Position or Velocity into the correct locations.
- **B:** Click on the "i" to get Analog Input scaling window Scale Analog Inputs for Position and Velocity.

#### Position/Velocity Analog Configuration

odule's Pa	ramete	rs
0	in	
10.00	v	SET
0	v	SET
	Sa	ve
	0	10.00 V

- **A:** Enter the maximum shot size on the machine.
- **B:** Run the screw to the maximum shot size, select "Set" to automatically set the maximum position voltage level.
- **C:** Run the screw to bottom (0 cushion), select "Set" to automatically set the 0 position voltage level.

age at Maximum Velocity: 10	00 <b>v</b>
Voltage at 0 Velocity: 0	00 <b>v</b>

#### Injection Pressure Hydraulic Sensor Configuration

Hydraulic Machines require a Hydraulic Pressure sensor.

Injection Pressure	
SN: 0330000 231:1 Value: 12.82 p	)
Braking	
B	
<u> </u>	

- A: Drag the Hydraulic sensor from the Available Sensor List to the Injection Pressure Location.
- **B:** If the Machine has the Dynamic Braking option, drag that sensor into the Braking Pressure Location.
- **C:** Click on the "i" to enter the Intensification Ratio window.

	Intensification Ratio	
D	Ratio 13.34	
CANCEL		DONEE

#### **Injection Pressure Analog Configuration**

Electric Machines Require an Analog Input Module to be wired to the Output for Injection Pressure from the Machine.

- **A:** Drag the Analog Input wired to the Injection Pressure Output to the Injection Pressure location.
- **B:** Click on the "i" to get the scaling window.

		Enter the Al Pres Module's Param		
		Maximum Pressure:	30000	PSI
D	Voltag	e at maximum pressure:	10	v
	E	Voltage at 0 pressure:	0.0000	v
		Cancel	Save	

#### **Sequence Module Configuration**

Triggers or Machine Sequence signals are 24VDC on/off signals from the machines digital outputs. The *eDART* uses these signals for timing. The sequence module will automatically assign itself to the Sequence signal box.



A: Click on the "i" to see the trigger lights and assign signals

Triggers tell the *eDART* when to execute different functions like zeroing sensors, Starting Cycles, and calculating values, therefore, it is important that the triggers are labeled exactly what they are.

The required signals, Injection Forward, Screw Run and Mold Clamped are pre assigned to the sequence module and can't be changed.

<ul> <li>Injection Forward 1104000501:1         <ul> <li>Not Assigned 1104000501:2             </li> <li>Screw Run 1104000501:3             </li> <li>Mold Clamped 1104000501:4             </li> <li>Not Assigned 1104000501:5             </li> </ul> </li> </ul>	
<ul> <li>1104000501:2</li> <li>Screw Run 1104000501:3</li> <li>Mold Clamped 1104000501:4</li> <li>Not Assigned</li> </ul>	Forward
<ul> <li>1104000501:3</li> <li>Mold Clamped 1104000501:4</li> <li>Not Assigned</li> </ul>	
1104000501:4     Not Assigned	
O Not Assigned 1104000501:6	
O Not Assigned 1104000501:7	

Triggers that are connected but not Pre-Assigned need to be labeled.



- **B:** Click the terminal location to assign the trigger name.
- **C:** Click on the correct label for the trigger connected to the terminal.
- **D:** To unassign a previously selected trigger, click on the terminal and change it to "Not Assigned".

# It is extremely important to label the triggers correctly. Leave them as "Not Assigned" if you are unsure.

## **Testing Inputs/Outputs**

When all sensors have been assigned, and the "Next" Button is clicked, the *eDART* will automatically take you to the Test Inputs Screen.



A: To verify triggers, watch the lights to make sure that the triggers come on and off at the correct times.

The Picture is an animation of your Machine and should move with the machine as a visual aid in Trigger assignment.

If the trigger light does not light up, label that input terminal not used or correct wiring to module.

If the trigger lights up at the wrong times, label that input terminal not used or correct wiring to module. You must go back to the Inputs page to makes changes.

- **B:** Click on this button to set the direction of the screw. See Set Screw Direction for details.
- **C:** Click this button to zero the injection pressure. See Zero Injection Pressure for details.

#### **Set Screw Direction**

## Choose the direction the cable is moving in by touching a picture



- A: Select option that matches the stroke sensor cable direction.
- B: Bottom the screw and select, to set the screw bottom postition.

#### **Zero Injection Pressure**

This needs to be completed while the machine is not injecting.



A: Select "Set To Zero" to set the Zero (0) while the machine is idle.

#### Automatic Trigger Testing

This window will appear after completing the Test Input page. If the triggers are incorrect during the cycle, an error message will appear once the job has started.

Following errors have been	encountered:
Not Assigned	$\sim$ $\square$
No signal has been received	A This input is not used
Mold Clamped	
No signal has been received	☐ This input is not used
Screw Run	
No signal has been received	This input is not used
Injection Forward	
CCANCEL	Вок

- A: Click on the "This input is not used" box if the trigger is not working or incorrect.
- **B:** Select "OK" to proceed without correcting the errors.
- **C:** Select "Cancel" to return to the test inputs page to correct the errors.

#### **Configure Outputs**



Use the *eDART* Outputs page to assign the output modules wired to machine.

- A: Available Sensor List Drag Output Modules from the Available sensor list into the location where they are wired.
- **B:** If a module is attached to the Robot or Part Diverter drop it into the Sorting box. See Sorting for details.
- **C:** If a module is wired to V>P transfer of the machine drop it into the Controls box. See Control Velocity to Pressure Transfer for details.

#### Sorting

When a Sensor from the Available Sensor list is held over the Sorting box, the window will open so that the sensors can be dropped into their positions.



**A:** Click on the "i" to configure the sorting output.

#### Sorting cont.



#### Shot Containment:

If the entire shot is to be segregated for inspection you will need one side of an OR2 module wired to Robot or Diverter. There will be only one OR2 module entry in the Sorting box. Click on the "i" and choose "Failsafe Good Part Output".

#### **Control Velocity to Pressure Transfer**

When you hold a sensor over the Control box, the window will open so that all of the control sensors can be added to control list.



- **A:** Drop all of the Modules wired to controls into the Controls box.
- **B:** Click on the "i" button to set up the control output type for each module.
- **C:** Choose the desired setting from the drop down.



#### **Output Testing**

Machine Setup	Step 5 of 6				×
BASIC	INPUTS	TEST INPUTS	OUTPUTS	TEST OUTPUTS	SUMMARY
		Machine Ou Test all Mac			
Arrow V->P Tran	nsfer 👫	Excessive Rejects			
	В	<b>c</b>			
A Test		Test			
ВАСК	DUNDO			CANCEL	NEXT

Use the Test output page to insure that the outputs work as expected.

- A: Click on the Test button to test each output.
- **B:** Check that the light turns green.
- **C:** Check that the LED on the output module turns green. Check that the device alternates correctly on the machine, robot, etc.

#### **Summary Tab**

This tab shows the type, location and serial number of all sensors relating to this machine, whether they are in use or not. Click 'Finish' to continue.

Control Output Pack->Hold Xfer         0107500 209:2           T         Digin Inj Fwd         0504000 233:1           T         Digin MidC         0504000 233:4           T         Digin ScrewR         0504000 233:3           T         Not Used         0504000 233:6           T         Not Used         0504000 233:5           T         Not Used         0504000 233:6           T         Not Used         0504000 233:6           T         Not Used         0504000 233:6           T         Not Used         0504000 233:6	BASIC	INPUTS	TEST INPUTS	OUTPUTS	TEST OUTPUTS	SUMMAR
Control Output Pack->Hold Xfer         0107500 209:2           T         Digin Inj Fwd         0504000 233:1           T         Digin MidC         0504000 233:4           T         Digin ScrewR         0504000 233:3           T         Not Used         0504000 233:6           T         Not Used         0504000 233:5           T         Not Used         0504000 233:6           T         Not Used         0504000 233:6           T         Not Used         0504000 233:6           T         Not Used         0504000 233:6						
Judin         Digin         Digin         Midic         0564000         233.1	Туре	Location		Serial Number	Sort By	_ocation 🛛
	●1 ●7	Control Out	tput Pack->Hold Xfer	0107500 209:2		
Jun         Digin ScrewR         0504000 233.3           Jun         Not Used         0504000 233.7           Jun         Not Used         0504000 233.6           Jun         Not Used         0504000 233.5           Jun         Not Used         0504000 233.2	nn	Digin Inj.Fv	/d	0504000 233:1		
Not Used         0564000 233.7           Not Used         0564000 233.6           Not Used         0564000 233.6           Not Used         0564000 233.5           Not Used         0564000 233.2	лл	Digln MldC		0504000 233:4		
אר         Not Used         0504000 233.6           אר         Not Used         0504000 233.5           אר         Not Used         0504000 233.2	лл	Digin Screv	vR	0504000 233:3		
Not Used         0564000 233.5           J.T.         Not Used         0504000 233.2	лл	Not Used		0504000 233:7		
ـــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــ	лл	Not Used		0504000 233:6		
	лл	Not Used	Not Used			
Plastic Pressure Injection 0006000 122:1	лп	Not Used		0504000 233:2		
	<del>0</del>	Plastic Pres	ssure Injection	0006000 122:1		

## **Modify Existing Machine**

MENU LOGOUT	HELP RJG CHAT
A Machine Arburg Mold	Filter AmandaW Arburg B Barb test 1 Cinci India1
V10 test mold Setup V10 on Arburg	Engel Press 32 roboshot Create New Machine

A: Click on the "Machine" button.

Machine Setup Step	1 of 5			×
BASIC	INPUTS	TEST INPUTS	OUTPUTS	TEST OUTPUTS
		Basic Machine Settings e Machine and input Screw Diar		
		e Number/Name: Irg 105		
	Screw	Diameter: 1.100 in 🗸		
	o		CAT	

B: Click on the arrow beside the Machine Name to get to the Machine Setup window.

### **Choose Pre-Existing Mold**

When a Mold is created the *eDART* will remember all of the Sensor Locations and Types. It is not necessary to set the Mold up again. Instead, just select it from the Mold Drop-down menu.

Lynx Mold Pressure Sensors are Mold Identifiers. Once they have been set up in a Mold file the *eDART* will remember which Mold they are in and automatically select it from the Mold list. If they are moved to a different Mold you will need to choose the correct Mold from the Mold select drop-down menu or create a new mold if it does not yet exist.



- A: Click on the "Mold" Button.
- **B:** Click on the correct Mold to Select.

### **Create New Mold**

Do not use the "Create New Mold" button if the Mold has been set up previously. Instead select it from the drop-down menu.

	MENU		Image: Repair of the second
	Machine Arburg	► )	Filter RING rulers
A	Mold V10 test mold	•	test 1
	Setup V10 on Arburg	Þ	Create New Mold

- A: Click on the "Mold" Button to get the Mold Menu.
- **B:** Click on the "Create New Mold" Button.

When "Create New Mold" button is selected the Mold Setup window will appear.

MENU LOGOUT			Image: Constraint of the second se	CHAT
Mold Setup Step 1 of 5				$\bigotimes$
BASIC INFO	INPUTS	OUTPUTS	TEST OUTPUTS	SUMMARY
	Name	Basic Mold Settings Mold and input basic Mold Infor	mation	
	V10 t	ne/Number: est mold of Cavities: 8		
ВАСК ОШ	iDO		CANCEL	NEXT

## **Sensor Assignment/Placement**

BASIC INFO	INPUTS	OUTPUTS	TEST OUTPUTS	SUMMARY
	Assign	Mold Sensor Settings Sensors to their Locations in		
Available Sensors	D Sor	t By Serial # ♥	V10 test m	old A
	$\smile$		Mold Sensors	1
SN: 0422401 024:1 LS-B-127-500	SN: 0422401 025:1 LS-B-127-500		0 Sensor(s) 1	
			0 Sensor(s)	<b>(C)</b>
SN: 0506000 404:1	SN: 0902100 962:1 PZ/LX4F-S		2	
			0 Sensor(s) 3	
SN: 0902100 963:1 PZ/LX4F-S	SN: 0902100 964:1 PZ/LX4F-S		o Sensor(s)	
			4	
			0 Sensor(s)	
		1	5	
			(	

- A: The Mold Name portion of the display will reflect the number of cavities entered for the Mold.
- B: Available Sensor List Drag a sensor from the "Available Sensor" list on the left to the correct cavity in the Mold on the right side of the window.
- **C:** When you place the sensor over the cavity, a window will appear for that Cavity only. Drop the sensor into the correct location within the cavity. See Cavity Location Sensor Placement for details.
- **D:** Sort Sensors by either Serial number or Model number.

ASIC INFO	INPUTS	OUTPUTS	TEST OUTPUTS	SUMMARY
	Assig	Mold Sensor Setting In Sensors to their Locations in		
able Sensors <u>st</u>	Sc	ort By Serial #	Mold 5	Reset
SN: 0422401 <b>024:1</b> LS-B-127-500	SN: 0506000 404: IA1-D-VI	a	End of Cavity SN: 0902100 961:1 End of Cavity 5	C
SN: 0902100 <b>963:1</b> PZ/LX4F-S	SN: 0902100 964: PZ/LX4F-S	a	Mid Cavity	
			Post Gate	

#### **Cavity Location Sensor Placement**

The Individual Cavity Window will appear when a sensor is held over a cavity in the mold window.



A: Drop the sensor into the correct Location within the individual cavity window.

Post Gate, End of Cavity, Mid Cavity - There may be several sensors in each Cavity.

- **B:** Click on the "i" to display the "Mold Sensor Config" window. See "Mold Sensor Config" window for more details..
- C: Click the Mold button to go back to all cavities.

#### **Configuring Sensors in the Mold** Mold Sensor Config - Strain Gage

When the "i" is selected next to an indirect sensor a window will appear to allow for entry of pin size.

Mold Sensor Config	
Ejector Pin: A $\longleftrightarrow$ $\bigstar$ Diameter: 0.1250 in $\checkmark$ Use this value as default (E)	Mold Sensor Config
CANCEL	Use this value as default

- A: Choose to enter the Ejector Pin diameter.
- B: Enter Ejector Pin diameter.
- C: Choose to enter pin/blade area.
- **D:** Enter pin/blade area.
- E: If all pins are the same size, select this option.

#### Mold Sensor Config - Piezo - Indirect

**a:** Choose the piezo style from the drop down menu.

M	old Sensor Config	a Mald Sensor Confin
Model #:	9211 🗢	Mold Sensor Config
Sensor Full Scale:	2500 Newtons	Sensor Full Scale: 2500 Newtons V
Sensor Sensitivity:	4.500 pC/Newton	Sensor Sensitivity: 4.500 pC/Newton
A Diameter:	→ × 1/8"  in	Area: 0.01227 v sq. in v
Use this valu	e as default	Use this value as default
	E	
CANCEL	DONE	

RJG, Inc. eDART® Software

#### Mold Sensor Config - Piezo Flush Mount

Clicking on the "i" button for a sensor will start the sensor identification window. If you are using a sensor adapter instead of a Lynx Sensor you will need to identify what sensor is attached to the adapter.

Мо	ld Sensor Config	
A Model #:	6157B	$\bigtriangledown$
CANCEL		DONE

#### **Piezo Sensor Adapter**

Мо	ld Sensor Config	
A Model #:	6157B	$\bigtriangledown$
Sensor Full Scale:	2000.0000 <b>bar</b>	
Sensor Sensitivity:	9.4000 pC/bar	
Use this valu	e as default	
CANCEL		DONE

#### **Locate Sensors**

If placement of sensors within the mold and cavities is unknown, the "Sensor assignment" tab can help locate them. When the mold is initially set up the "Available Sensor" list will have a "Clear List" choice to aid you.

BASIC INFO	INPUTS	OUTPUTS	TEST OUTPUTS	SUMMARY
	Assig	Mold Sensor Setting: n Sensors to their Locations in		
Available Sensors Gear List Full List	Sc	ort By Serial # 🗸	Mold 3	Resi
			End of Cavit	У
			Mid Cavity	
			Post Gate	

A: Click on "Clear List" to remove all sensors from the "Available Sensor" list.

Apply Pressure to each sensor; or pin.

#### **Indirect Sensors:**

- 1. Open mold
- 2. Extend ejector pins
- 3. Push on pins one at a time
- 4. Note the order that pins were pushed

#### **Direct Sensors**

- 1. Apply pressure to sensors
- 2. Note the order that sensors were loaded

Available Sensors		Sor
Clear List Full List		
SN: 0902100 961:1	(2)	
SN: 0902100 961:1 PZ/LX4F-S	(2)	

#### Locate Sensors cont.

Sensors will appear in the "Available Sensor" list when pressure is applied to them.

BASIC INFO	INPUTS	OUTPUTS	TEST OUTPUTS	SUMMARY
	Ass	Mold Sensor Setting sign Sensors to their Locations in		
Available Sensors		Sort By Serial #	V10 test m	old
			Mold Sensors	
SN: 0422401 024:1 LS-B-127-500	SN: 0422401 02		1 Sensor(s)	
		(D) (	E 1 Sensor(s)	
SN: 0506000 404:1 IA1-D-VI			2	
			0 Sensor(s)	
			<u>3</u>	
			0 Sensor(s) 4	
			0 Sensor(s)	
			د دیانگاری ج	
			6	

- **C:** Watch "Available Sensor" list for sensors to appear.
- **D:** Sensors will highlight and be numbered in the order in which they were pressed.
- E: Drag sensors into their correct cavity and location.

#### **Configuration for Individual Cavity Part Containment**

Individual cavity containment requires one relay from an OR2-D module to be assigned to each cavity.

It is helpful if maintenance notes the serial numbers wired to the robot for each cavity.

BASIC INFO	INPUTS	OUTPUTS	TEST OUTPUTS	SUMMARY
		Id Output Sensor Set Sensors to their Locations in		
Available Sensors	D sort	t By Serial #	V10 test m	old A
	$\smile$		1 0 Sensor(s)	$\smile$
SN: 0607500 092:1 OR2-D	SN: 0607500 092:2		0 sensor(s) 2	
-	•		– O Sensor(s)	
SN: 0607500 093:1 • OR2-D	SN: 0607500 093:2		3	
OR2-D	OR2-D		0 Sensor(s)	
			<u>4</u>	
			0 Sensor(s)	
			<u>5</u>	
			0 Sensor(s)	
			6	

- A: The Mold Name portion of the display will reflect the number of cavities entered for the mold.
- **B:** Available Sensor List Drag a sensor from the "Available Sensor" list on the left to the correct cavity in the Mold on the right side of the window.
- **C:** When you place the sensor over the cavity a window will appear for that Cavity only. Drop the sensor into the correct location within the cavity. See Cavity Location Sensor Placement for details.

Sort By Serial #	Mold 2	Reset
93:1	Cavity Sorting	
	SN: 0607500 092:2	(c)
	Cavity Sorting	
	Valve Gate	

**D:** Sort Sensors by either Serial number or Model number.

#### Mold Setup - Test Outputs

Mold Setup Step 4	of 5			8
BASIC INFO	INPUTS	OUTPUTS	TEST OUTPUTS	SUMMARY
	Clir	Test Mold Outputs ck on sensors to test Mold Outp	puts	
Open Gate #8	Cavity So	rting #6;6 Ope	n Gate #4	Cavity Sorting #2
•		В		
Test	(A) Tes		Test	Test
ВАСК	OdnuC		CAN	

- A: Click on the Test button to test each output.
- **B:** If the test is successful the light associated with that output turns green.

#### **Mold Setup - Summary**

At a glance view of all sensors, their placement in the mold and their serial numbers.

A: Sort by Cavity, Type, Location or Serial Number.

BASIC INFO	INPU	TS	OUTPUTS	TEST OUTPUTS	SUMMARY
			<b>Ensor Summar</b> Locations are Cor		
Cavity	Туре	Location		Serial Number	Sort By Cavity
Mold	<b>\$</b>	Runner		0902100 962:1	Cavity Type
2	ė	End of Cavity		0422401 025:1	Location Serial #
2	•1	Unknown		0607500 092:2	
4	•1 •1	Valve Gate		0607500 093:2	
6	4.2. 4.2. 4.3. <b>()</b> +	Unknown		0607500 092:1	
7	\$	Post Gate		0902100 964:1	
8	• <u>-</u> -	Valve Gate		0607500 093:1	
Unassigned	<b>\$</b>	Unassigned		0902100 963:1	
Unassigned	<b>\$</b>	Unassigned		0902100 961:1	7

## **Modify Existing Mold**

	MENU LOGOUT	HELP RJG CHAT
	Machine Arburg	Filter RING rulers Lett
A	Mold V10 test mold	test 1 test 2 Two Rulers
	Setup V10 on Arburg	V10 test mold

- **A:** To modify an existing mold, click on the "Mold" button.
- **B:** Click on the arrow next to the Mold that needs to be edited.
- **C:** Go to the appropriate tab or field to make the required edits. Click "Next" until the last screen is reached. Click 'Finish' to continue.

		$\sim$		CHAT
Mold Setup Step 1 of	5	С		$\otimes$
BASIC INFO	INPUTS	OUTPUTS	TEST OUTPUTS	SUMMARY
	Name	Basic Mold Settings Mold and input basic Mold Info	rmation	
	V10 t	ne/Number: est mold of Cavities: 8		
ВАСК	JUNDO		CANC	

## **Setup Process Overview**

#### Setup

Use this to create a new setup or if something has changed in a saved process that will affect alarm settings or the timing of the part segregation device. Saving a setup for the new process allows you to get back to the old process at a later time if necessary. (Refer to the Process Setup Manual for more details)



- A: Click on the "Setup" button from the Home Page of the eDART.
- B: Click on the "Create New Process Button".

#### **Basic Setup**

MENU LOGOUT		HELP	RJG CHAT	MENU LOGOUT GO RUJCHAT SETINGS
Process Setup Step 1 of 4			$\otimes$	Process Setup Step 1 of 4
BASIC	ALARM LIMITS	SORTING ACTIONS	CONTROL SETTINGS	BASIC ALARM LIMITS SORTING ACTIONS CONTROL SETTINGS
•		tess Settings Input notes about Process		Basic Process Settings Name your Process and input notes about Process
	Setup Hame: Standard Cycle Tene: 30.00 s Notes:	econds		Setup Ham:           Arburg V10           Sendard Cycle Time:           DODD           Tete:         7         8         9         Bksp           Meter:         7         8         9         Bksp           1         2         3         +         1         2         4         >         0         .         X
	Ì			

When "Create New Process" is selected, the "Basic" process setup screen will appear.

- A: Enter the Process Name.
- B: Enter the Standard Cycle Time for this process

RJG, Inc. eDART® Software

#### **Alarm Limits**

Click on the "Next" button to go to the "Alarm Limits" tab. (Refer to the Process Setup Manual for more details)

This configuration will include the addition of Process Alarms/Warnings and Part Diverter/Robot Signal Controls.

When a process alarm or warning is added, the *eDART* will display both a low and high alarm. These alarm levels can be set either automatically or manually based on actual part characteristics.

			HELP	RJG CHAT	SETTINGS	s		dd Alarms		
s Setup Step 2 of 4						8		au Alarino		
BASIC	ALARM LIMITS		IG ACTIONS	CONTR	ROL SETTINGS		Machine	Mole	d Material	
	Alarm Lim Choose Alarm variables an		ower limits					Θ		
Cycle Name	Туре	Value	Low	High	Units		Decompression	Shot Stro	ke 😔	
							Fill Speed	Shot Strol	ke # 😑	
							Fill Time			
							Hold Time			
							Peak			
							Process Time			
						-	Shot Stroke Minimum			
AUTO-SET				ADD	REMOVE		CANCEL	APPL	Y DONE	
				CANCEL	NEXT	1				~

- **A:** Click on the "Add Alarm" Button. When "Add Alarm" Button is selected the *eDART* will display the list of available alarms.
- B: Choose the positions you wish to monitor or alarm
- C: Click "Done" to apply Warnings and Alarms when complete

#### **Sorting Actions**

Click the "Next" button to display the "Sorting Actions" Window. This window will allow for input on how to treat the sorting output signal to insure the parts reach their proper destination. (Refer to the Process Setup Manual for more details)

MENU	]	HELP	RJG CHAT	SETTINGS				
Process Setup Step 3 of 4	l			8				
BASIC	ALARM LIMITS	SORTING ACTIONS	CONTROL	SETTINGS				
	Sort Se Set timing and options							
Diverter Timing Controls         A         Image: Hold diverter position until alarm changes         Image: Hold diverter position         2.00         seconds after end of mold clamped         Image: C         Reject         1         Shot(s) after machine has been down         Image: D         D         D         D         CLEAR DELAYED DIVERTER OUTPUTS								
	00		CANCEL	NEXT				

- A: Check this box to hold the part diverter in one position until there is a change in the alarm state.
- **B:** Check this box and enter the amount of time for the contact to be held closed when a good part signal is generated.
- **C:** To use the "Reject After Down" feature, check this box and enter number of parts to be rejected after the Machine has been down.
- **D:** To use the "Diverter Delay" feature, check this box and enter the number of cycles that you would like to delay the output. Use this feature for conveyers that have many parts on it before the diverter device or over-mold processes that have alarms set on the 1st shot.

#### **Control Settings**

This page allows the user to configure how alarms are calculated. It also contains the settings for additional control output configurations. This page allows for the modification of Integration limits and for configuration so that you can see a temperature drop instead of temperature rise in LSR or other thermo-set materials. (Refer to the Process Setup Manual for more details)

MENU LOGIN	)	HELP	RJG CHAT
Process Setup Step 4 of 4	i		$\otimes$
BASIC	ALARM LIMITS	SORTING ACTIONS	CONTROL SETTINGS
		Settings d additional sorting tools	
Computations	Consider cavity full when plastic pressure reaches TC End of cavity pressure integrals a Integration Limit End:	no psi at End of Ca nd compute alarm outputs at: Screw Run End	avity 🗢
	00		

A: Click here for more control options.

MENU LOGIN	]	<b>O</b> HELP	RJG CHAT	SETTINGS
Process Setup Step 4 of 4	1			$\otimes$
BASIC	ALARM LIMITS	SORTING ACTIONS	CONTROL	. SETTINGS
	Control S Set integration limits and			
Computations	Consider cavity full when 100 plastic pressure reaches End of cavity pressure integrals an		ivity 🗢	
	Integration Limit End: Peak Computation Option:	Screw Run End		
	Start of Injection + x seconds Injection Forward delay	0.00		
	after Mold Clamped: Falling Temperation Detection			
	B			
<b>ВАСК</b> ЭИМ			CANCEL	FINISH

- **B:** Click on "Less" to hide them.
- **C:** Click on "Finish" to complete the process setup and go back to the main window.
#### Start Job

Once you have set up the machine, the mold, and the process as seen in the previous pages, you are ready to start your job.

MENU LOGOUT	Image: Provide the second se	
Machine Arburg Mold V10 test mold Setup V10 on Arburg		
Setup Notes	BEGIN	A

A: To Start the process, click on the "Begin" button at the bottom of the screen.

### **Job Overview**

At the top of the Overview page are four 'buttons'. These allow you to navigate between the screens. You can click on each button or use the arrows to go back and forth as well.



- A: Job Overview: At a glance basic information
- B: Cycle and Summary Graphs
- C: Job Audit page
- D: Diagnostics page

RJG, Inc. eDART® Software

#### Job Overview, continued

On this screen you will see:



- A: Machine Status
- B: Machine, Material and Mold Match status indicator
- C: Software Tools and Options
- **D:** Good / Bad Part Counts and 100 shot history

#### **Cycle and Summary Graph View**

- A: Cycle Graph
- **B:** Summary Graph

	MENU	LOGIN	<b>↓</b> ∪ Jot	Summary	HELP	RJG C	жат	SETTIN	GS
	Graph Controls	Template Con	ntrols			Overlays	Θz	🕀	
	PP, Injection		0.	032					
A	PP, End of Cavity #2			0 (T=0)					
Ŭ	PP, End of Cavity #3	-		0 (T=0) 0 (T=0)					_
	PP, End of Cavity #11			2443 (T=2461)					
	PP, End of Cavity #10			-0.168 (T=-0.190) 10 (T=10) 0) -0.159 (T=-0.181) 0 (T=0)				199-19-10 1	Option
	▽ None		¢	0 (1-0)					
		0.00 sec.	Jul 14, 10 : 58 : 19						0.106
	Graph Controls	s Add <u>N</u> ote	9				O Zoon	" <b>+</b>	$\square$
B	Sequence Time Fill Time								
$\bigcirc$	Injection Integral Injection Pressure	while would have	whether whether the	hey your destablished and a start of the second	alublind for and	uhlahaha yan	hitelandthay		
	Peak End of Cavity #8	when his put you when	dan humphy which and	charpethan Madenic American	personal and the second and the second s	with plan the supply	monthydant	wythe	٧ł
	Peak End of Cavity #7		durp New Mark Standard	Analy have a new print	pollichup hulphy	untired was the April	pollochyp	whitehat	M Z
	Notes-> Scrollbar->								
	Cycle Total	5118 Thu Jul 14	09:54:34				Thu J	ul 14 10:5	8:14

### Cycle Graph

The Cycle Graph is where the real time data is displayed visually. All active sensors will be available to view in the graphical real time form.



- **A:** Main Graph Area. All real time graphs will be displayed in this area.
- **B:** Curve Help Screen. This screen shows sample curves and gives descriptions of important features of each curve.
- **C:** Time span visible on the graph. These values can be changed to show any portion of the graph in detail.
- **D:** Digital input-output graph area. Any on/off signals can be displayed in this portion of the graph. These signals would include triggers, control outputs, and sorting outputs.
- E: Click this button to maximize or minimize the graph.
- F: Use the plus and minus signs to zoom in and out. The graph will always start from 0 seconds as you zoom.

### Cycle Graph cont.

	<u>G</u> raph Controls	Template Controls			G	🗖 Overlays	Θ	Zoom	$\oplus$
K	PP, Injection EOC #1;A	1.4	<sup>70</sup> <b>I</b>		$\bigcirc$				
ľ	Ve, Injection		(H)		 ·····	******	*****		
		1	343 (T=342) 2749 (T=2836)	 	 i.		1999 - Series -	an a	
	-			 	 +				
	Good								
		0.00 sec. Jan	04, 21 : 57 : 28						10.0
			J						

- **G:** Click this button to overlay all future cycles on the display.
- **H:** Cursor. The cursor can be placed on the graph to view values for curves at specific times.
- I: Time into the cycle will be displayed at the top of the cursor.
- J: Time Date Stamp for the present shot is displayed here. All shots are differentiated with a time date stamp.
- **K:** Each Curve displayed on the Cycle Graph will have a Curve Identification button. The Curve name will be displayed on the button and will be the color of the curve.

#### **Graph Control Menu Auto Scale Curves**

A		Template Controls				🗏 Overlays	Θ	Zoom	Ð	
$\mathcal{I}$	Grap	oh Controls					_			
Ŭ	Auto Scale	(B)	537 (T=0.532)	 						
	Set Fill Volume a	at Cursor				and the second se				
	Add a Curve					and the second second	and the second second			
		1	<mark>343 (T=342)</mark> 2749 (T=2836)	 				***********	*********	
	-	<u> </u>		 	 					
	Good									
		0.00 sec. Jan	04, 21 : 57 : 28						1	10.0

- A: Click on the "Graph Controls" Menu.
- **B:** Click on "Auto Scale" from the menu. The curves will automatically scale fit the screen.

#### Set Fill Volume at Cursor

(

The *eDART* uses the area under the fill portion of the Injection Curve as an Effective Viscosity Measurement as the area varies directly with variation in viscosity. This value is correct only when calculated during the dynamic fill portion of the cycle. To insure that this is calculated at an appropriate place, the volume at transfer needs to be entered into the *eDART*.



- A: Place the Cursor at transfer on the Cycle Graph.
- **B:** Click on the "Graph Controls" Menu.
- **C:** Click on "Set Fill Volume at Cursor". The *eDART* will use the volume measurement at that point as an ending point for the Effective Viscosity Measurements.

#### **Cycle Graph Values**

**A:** To see numerical values for curves on the Cycle Graph, click your curser on Summary Data Table, select the settings gear, and check the boxes for the values you wish to see, and click Apply.

MENU	Job Summar	y HELP	RJG CHAT	
Graph Controls Template	Controls	ΠC	Overlays ⊖ 0.380 (T=0.376) 0.404 (T=0.377) 0.384 (T=0.378)	
PP, Injection	Add Sumr	mary Data	0.3(3690 (T=3630) 3450 (T=3410) 3400 (T=3280) 3320 (T=3310)	
PP, End of Cavity #2	Machine Machine	Mold Material	3230 (T=3210) 3220 (T=3170) 3160 (T=3110) 3120 (T=3120)	
PP, End of Cavity #11	Average Value	4		
Summary Data Table Name Sequence Time:Fill Time	Val A Pressure Integral		ue Tpl % Tpl Unit	
0.00 se	Cycle Time		0.431	
Graph Controls Add	ot Fill Speed		🗢 Zoom 🕂 🔼	
Sequence Time	Fill Time     ✓       Fill & Pack Integral			
Injection Integral Injection Pressure		APPLY	where we have been a the work of the work of the second and the second the se	
End of Cavity #0	Data Table 🛛 🔅	· · · · · ·		Options
End of Cavity #7 Notes Scrollba	Value         Tpl           II Time         0.0100         0.0100	% Tpl         Unit           0.0%         sec.	Name Value Tpl	% Tpl Unit
Cycle Total 5118 Thu Ji	14 11:13:21		Thu Jul 14 12:16:57	

**B:** When 4 or more sensors are present, a bar graph can been also be obtained by clicking Summary Bar Chart to veiw the desired curve.



		Audit Log	HELP RJG CHAT	TINGS
Date/Time	Activity	User	Detail	
2014/05/08 07:08:28	Sensor 09 021 00963:1: piezo_type	Admin	Piezo Adapter	Z
2014/05/08 07:08:28	Sensor 09 021 00961:1: piezo_type	Admin	Piezo Adapter	
2014/05/08 07:08:18	Job Started	Admin	Arburg	
2014/05/08 07:06:03	Saved Mold Setup	Admin	V10 test mold	_
2014/05/01 14:15:04	Job Stopped.	Admin		
2014/05/01 14:14:55	Sensor 09 021 00961:1: piezo_type	Admin	Piezo Adapter	
2014/05/01 14:14:44	Job Started	Admin	Arburg	
2014/05/01 14:14:39	Saved Mold Setup	Admin	V10 test mold	
2014/05/01 14:11:38	Job Stopped.	Admin		

A: Sort by Date, Activity or User to see what changes have been made over a period of time, and who made them.

### **Diagnostics**

М	ENU LOGIN	Diagnosti	c • • • • • • •	HELP RJG CH	
	Serial # 🔺	Attached to	Sensor Type	Location	Status
			Diagnostic Info	Port 1	Ok
			Diagnostic Info	Port 2	Ok
Δ	0123600123:1	Mold	Ejector Pin Force	End of Cavity #1;A	Valid
Δ	0407500037:1	Machine	Control Output	V->P Transfer	Valid
	0407500037:2	Machine	Sorting Output	Reject Control	Valid
	0460000136:1	Machine	Stroke	Injection	Valid
	0460000136:2	Machine	Velocity	Injection	Valid
Δ	0504000261:1	Machine	Seq. Module Input	Injection Forward	Valid
	0504000261:3	Machine	Seq. Module Input	Screw Run	Valid
Λ	0504000261:4	Machine	Seq. Module Input	Mold Clamped	Valid

- A: Click on the arrow or the fourth dot to get to the diagnostic page.
- **B:** Click on the triangle to display information about sensor status.



**C:** Click on the "View Raw Data" button to display more detailed information about the sensor.



# Remote Access & Viewing the eDART

This section describes the options for remote access and viewing of the *eDART*.

### In This Chapter

- 46 Remote Access
- 46 Viewing the eDART
- 46 Making the Connection
- **48** Viewing the Current Process

### Remote Access Viewing the eDART

First, it is important to establish what you want to do with your system. In general, you will want to do one of the following:

- View the Current Process (in real-time)
- Copy/Move Data, Templates, etc.
- Analyze Data

Before you can do any of these things, you will need to make a physical connection from the *eDART* to a remote computer. The options for remote viewing are listed and described below. RJG strongly recommends utilizing an Ethernet connection because of its speed and ease of use.

### **Making the Connection**

#### NOTE

Installation of eDART<sup>™</sup> System Utilities Software is required

#### Ethernet (preferred method)

An Ethernet connection links the *eDART* to another computer or a network so that information can be transmitted between them. See the "Making the Connection" section for detailed instructions on making the Ethernet Connection.

- > Network: An eDART can be wired into an office network using a hub.
- Cross Over Cable: Allows a computer to communicate with an *eDART* directly without using a hub.

For instructions on making a connection using a modem, see the "Making the Connection" section for detials.

After you make a physical connection to the *eDART*, you can choose what you would like to do:

1. Analyze Data

Use the Analyzer program to view saved *eDART* data. Refer to the Analyzer section of this chapter for more information.

2. Copy/Move Data, Templates, etc.

Use the "Filezilla" program to copy or move *eDART* data, templates, or other files to an office computer, server, or other location so that the information can be emailed, burned to disk, etc. Refer to later section for Filezilla FTP program information.

3. View Current Process

Viewing the current process in real-time requires a Phindows license for each remote computer you are using for viewing.

4. Update Your eDART Software

You can perform an *eDART* software update using either a serial or Ethernet connection.

#### NOTE

The computer must have a network card installed.

#### **Ethernet Connection**

#### <u>Network</u>

To wire the *eDART* into your existing network, connect the Ethernet cable to the RJ-45 Ethernet port on the *eDART*. Connect the other end of the Ethernet cable to the hub.

#### Crossover Cable

To wire the *eDART* directly to another computer (without a hub), connect one end of the Ethernet crossover cable to the RJ-45 Ethernet port on the *eDART*. Connect the other end of the cable to the computer's network jack.

Your computer will need a fixed IP address. You can also set the IP

address of the eDART to match your network. Select "Configure eDART" from the QNX icon on the *eDART* toolbar. This will prevent issues involving changing the IP address each time the computer is moved. For more information, refer to the "Configure *eDART*" section of the Helpviewer.



### **Viewing the Current Process**

#### Phindows

The Phindows program allows users on remote Windows platforms to connect to and interact with applications running on a QNX computer (e.g. *eDART*).

You can view the software remotely at as many workstations as desired. You will, however, need a separate Phindows license for each workstation. Phindows is an optional piece of software for the *eDART* system.

#### Installation

- 1. Select "Run" from the Start menu
- 2. Type "A:\setup.exe"
- 3. Click OK.

You can also create a Phindows shortcut for each *eDART*.

- Use Windows Explorer to find Phindows.exe in C:\ Program Files\RJG Insight System\Photon\ phindows.exe.
- 2. Right click on Phindows.exe
- 3. Select "Create Shortcut"
- 4. Right click on the shortcut and select Properties from the menu.
- 5. Click on the Shortcut tab.
- Modify the Target to read: C:\Program Files\RJG Insight System\Photon\phindows.exe -t (IP Address) -n (Node number) -u -o1.
- 7. Click OK to save the changes
- 8. Verify that the eDART is attached to the network
- 9. Double click the shortcut to run the program

### eDART Locator

*eDART* Locator is part of the *eDART* System Utilities Software CD. It is used in conjunction with Phindows to view *eDARTs* from a Windows computer.

- Double click the *eDART* Locator option inside the RJG Insight System folder on the desktop.
- First, choose File, Settings. Use the browser (...) button to choose the path to Phindows.
- When finished, click OK.

Next, find the *eDARTs* under the Machine Name heading. Double click the desired name to view the software for that *eDART*.

Customize Settings	×
Path to Phindows: iles\RJG Insight\Photon\phindows.exe	
Unlock Cursor Mode	
🗖 <u>S</u> how Background 🗖 <u>T</u> ile Image	
Background Image:	
OK Cancel	

Shortcut to phine	lows.exe Properties
General Shortco	It Security
Sh	ortcut to phindows.exe
Target type:	Application
Target location:	Photon
<u>T</u> arget:	"C:\Program Files\RJG Insight\Photon\phindows.
🔽 Run in sepa	rate memory space <b>F Run as different user</b>
<u>S</u> tart in:	"C:\Program Files\RJG Insight\Photon"
Shortout <u>k</u> ey:	None
<u>R</u> un:	Normal window
C <u>o</u> mment:	
	<u>Find Target</u> <u>Change Icon</u>
	OK Cancel Apply

🖶 eDART Locator			
<u>File View H</u> elp	-	1	
Machine Name	Net Group	System Type	Connection Info
Plant/Cell/Machine	Your Group	eDART #101	192.168.1.101#5731
Plant/Cell/Machine	Your Group	eDART #205	192.168.1.205#5731
Plant/Cell/Machine	Your Group	eDART #106	192.168.1.106#5731
Plant/Cell/Machine	Your Group	eDART #150	192.168.1.150#5731
Plant/Cell/Machine	Your Group	eDART#108	192.168.1.108#5731
Plant/Cell/Machine	Your Group	eDART #204	192.168.1.204#5731
Plant/Cell/Machine	Your Group	eDART#102	192.168.1.102#5731
Plant/Cell/Machine	Your Group		
Plant/Cell/Machine	Your Group	eDART #206	192.168.1.206#5731 👱
	Push t	io Start	

If *eDART* names do not appear, you will have to add the IP addresses to a list file.

Inside the RJG Insight System folder there is an "Edit eDART IP List" option. Double click on this option to open the file.

- > Type in the IP address of the first *eDART*.
- > Click Enter and then type the next IP address.
- > Choose File, Save and then close.
- ➢ Re-open *eDART* Locator.

### FTP File Transfer

To transfer data from an *eDART* to another PC, laptop, or server, access the Filezilla program from your "RJG Insight System" folder. You should see the screen below:

#### NOTE

Installation of *eDART*<sup>™</sup> System Utilities Software is required.

	1	2	3		4			
Z FileZilla version 1.5a				ta bi si ta bi si ta bi si		a bi bi bi bi bi bi bi		
<u>File Edit Iransfer View ?</u>								
🏛 📴 🖸 💁 🎯 🗱 R	2 8	/			/			
Address: 192.168.9.247 User: r	root	Password:	Port: 21	Quickconnect				
Command: PORT 192,168,1,75,4,193 Response: 200 PORT command successful Command: TYPE A Response: 200 Type set to A. Command: LIST Response: 150 Opening ASCII mode data c Response: 226 Transfer complete.		/bin/ls.		6				*
Local Site: c:\D3DTEMP\		B	emote Site: /e-dart/data/N	violds				-
⊡~ 🚚 My Computer		▲ F	ilename 🛆	Filesize	Date	Time	Permissions	-
	Last Mo	dified	I 101 1998 299 5852 Big Demo Cores Demo Cores Demo Cores Demo M-246-A532 0 s1288 raw_test Small Demo Analysis Cycle_Graph.cfg Analysis Cycle_Values.cfg	918	02/15/2002 02/15/2002 02/15/2002 12/10/2001 01/25/2002 02/15/2002 02/15/2002 02/15/2002 12/04/2001 12/04/2001 12/04/2001 12/04/2001	11:05 09:52 09:55 09:59 09:43 13:25 11:09 10:01 14:35 14:35 10:40 14:35 14:35	drwxr-xr-x drwxr-xr-x drwxr-xr-x drwxr-xr-x drwxr-xr-x drwxr-xr-x drwxr-xr-x drwxr-xr-x drwxr-xr-x drwxr-xr-x drwxr-xr-x drwxr-xr-x drwxr-xr-x	
Local Filename Analysis.Cycle_Graph.cfg	Size 120		ste Filename rt/data/Molds/Analysis.Cyc	Host cle_G 192.1	68.9.208:21	Status		
						1	eue: 120 bytes	لك

- 1. Address: Type in the IP address of the *eDART* or computer you would like to connect to. If you are using a serial connection, type in "10.0.0.1".
- 3. User: Type in "root". Use lowercase letters.
- 5. Password: Type in "evintea". Use lowercase letters.
- 7. Quickconnect: Click this button to connect to the IP Address you've specified.
- Local Site: By clicking on the "+" and "-" boxes, select the directory location you would like the transferred data to be placed.
- 11. Remote Site: Select the "e-dart" folder and then select the "data" folder. From the list of data, select the file(s) you would like to transfer by clicking the name once to highlight it.

#### NOTE Clicking on the folder followed by two dots takes you up one level.

7. Once highlighted, hold down the left mouse button and drag the file here. Repeat for each file to be transferred. When all files have been selected, right-click anywhere in this box to bring up a menu. From the menu, select "Process Queue". The file(s) will be transferred to the Local Site you've selected.

Once installed, the Filezilla program contains detailed help.

### Analyzer

The Analyzer is a Windows application for use with RJG's DART*Vision*<sup>™</sup> or Insight System<sup>™</sup>. Follow the instructions below to use the Analyzer tool.

Scan Network for eDARTS

#### 1. Launch the Analyzer

The main screen of the Analyzer is the data selector. The Data Directory at the left side of the screen lists directories where data has been saved (by mold).

At the bottom of the screen is a toolbar where you can select various tools for the viewing, analysis, or calculation of data.



2. Select a folder

In the Data Directory, click on the folder with the name of the mold data you would like to view. If you want to choose a specific set of data from the folder, click the "+" to the left of the folder. This will expand the directory and give more specific options.

#### NOTE

If the folder is labeled "L", it contains local data (data from the directory you chose above). If the folder is labeled "ED", that data is from an eDART on the network.

3. Select Start and End Date

The two calendars on the right side of the screen allow you to choose a start date and end date for the data you have chosen to view. If the background color is gray, there is no data available to display. If it is white, data is available. The dates marked with bold text indicate dates where data exists. Using the calendar on the left, select the starting date for the data you would like to view. Using the calendar on the right, select the ending date. You can also select data starting and ending times below the calendars. (View the Current Process continued)

4. Select an Application

From the toolbar at the bottom of the screen, choose the application that you would like to use with your selected data range.



### Summary Graph

The Summary Graph provides a graphical display of summary values allowing you to view trends. Multiple summary value trends can be displayed here at one time. A summary value is a single number (data point) for each cycle; i.e. peak cycle integral, cycle time, etc.



#### Title Bars

Displayed at the left side of the screen, these bars indicate which summary measurements are being shown on the graph. To add a measurement to the summary graph, choose "Add Curve" from the Graph Controls menu or click on the title bar and press the Add Curve button.

#### Cursor

The cursor is the vertical line on the graph. It can be moved on the graph by left clicking on the point you want the cursor to move to or left click and drag the cursor itself. The numerical values for each data point are displayed underneath the title bars.

#### Get Cycle

The Get Cycle button at the bottom of the screen will bring up the cycle graph for the data selected by the cursor.

#### (View the Current Process continued)

#### Export

Press this button to export the data on the summary graph to an Excel spreadsheet. To select only a certain area of the summary graph to export, zoom in on that area (right click and drag) and then press the Export button.

#### Note

To add a note, place the cursor on the desired data point and choose Add Note from the Graph Controls menu. The note will appear as a small icon at the bottom of the graph. To view the note, simply click on its icon. To change the note, choose Edit Note from the Graph Controls menu.

#### Zoom/Unzoom

To zoom in on a particular area of a curve, choose Zoom from the Graph Controls menu or right click and drag on the desired area of the graph.

### Cycle Graph

The Cycle Graph displays saved cycle data, one shot at a time.



#### **Overlays**

You can view multiple shots at a time by turning the Overlays function on (Press the OV button at the bottom of the screen).

#### Zoom

To zoom in on a particular area of a curve, choose Zoom from the Graph Controls menu or right click and drag on the desired area of the graph.

#### Cursor

The vertical cursor on the graph displays the numerical values for each curve. It can be moved on the graph by left clicking on the point you want the cursor to move to or left click and drag the cursor itself.

#### (Cycle Graph continued)

#### Add a Curve

To add a curve that is not displayed, select Add Curve from the Graph Controls pull-down menu.

#### **Data Replay**

You can scroll through data using the arrows at the bottom of the screen. The shot time stamp indicates the date and time each specific shot was made. You can replay the data by pressing the green button at the bottom of the screen. Set the replay speed using the slider to the left. As the cycles replay, the cursor will move on the summary graph (if both screens are visable) so you can see which cycle data corresponds to the summary data. The red button will stop replay.

#### Save as Template

To use the cycle data on the graph as a template to compare other cycles against, select "Save as Template" from the Graph Controls menu. Type in a description of the template and press Save. The template can be modified in the Template Controls selection. These templates are readable by the *eDART*.

### **Statistics Screen**

The Statistics screen will calculate average, standard deviation, etc. for the data range displayed on the summary screen.

Big Demo - Sta	atistice			
Data Rang	e: Shots Back	20 shots	back	
Stat Name	Value Type	Location	Value	Units
Maximum	Peak	End of Cavity	7736	psi
Minimum	Peak	End of Cavity	7502	psi
Average	Peak	End of Cavity	7590	psi
Minimum	Peak	Injection Pressure	10900	psi
Makimum	Peak	Injection Pressure	11300	psi
Average	Peak	Injection Pressure	11100	psi
Maximum	Peak	Post Gate	7648	psi
Average	Peak	Post Gate	7594	psi
Minimum	Peak	Post Gate	7541	psi
•				<u> </u>
Add Value	Rem	ove Malue	Sdev. Multiplia	er (N): 3.0

#### Adding/Removing Values

To add additional values, press Add. Choose the calculation (Average, Maximum, Minimum, Standard Deviation, etc.) you would like to apply to the selected data range and press OK. Select a summary measurement and location from the list that you would like to view and press OK. Repeat to add additional measurements. To remove a measurement that had already been added, highlight it and press Remove.

#### (Cycle Graph continued)

#### Data Range

Choose a view (Summary View, Shots Back, or Whole View) from the Data Range combo box at the top of the screen. If you select Shots Back, you can indicate the number of shots.

#### **Part Measurement**

The Part Measurements tool is used with the Part Sampling tool in the eDART software. Using the Part Sampling tool, you can collect samples for later analysis by marking the datapoints where you took these. In the Part Measurements tool, you can enter part measurements.

	Group Name	Shot D/T	Length	Part Weight	Surface Finish
	Test1	01/01/2002 19:28:45			
		19:28:45	1.000	1.000	25.00
		19:29:15	2.000	1.000	26.00
		19:29:45	3.000	1.000	24.00
		19:30:14	2.000	1.000	25.00
		19:30:44	3.000	1.000	25.12
	Test 4	01/01/2002 19:33:29			
	Test6	01/01/2002 19:38:00			
	Test 8	01/01/2002 19:44:28			
	Test 10	01/01/2002 19:48:44			
Edit Column(s) Expand All Collapse All Save Columns as Default					

#### **Data Export**

The Data Export tool allows you to choose summary measurements and export them to a csv (Excel readable) file where additional data analyis can be done. This tool can also be accessed from the summary graph.



#### (Cycle Graph continued)

#### Adding/Removing Summary Measurements

Press Add and select a summary measurement and location from the list that you would like to view and press OK. The measurement header will appear at the end of the list.

To insert a measurement in a specific place in the list, highlight the measurement header directly below where you would like the new measurement to appear. Press Insert and select a summary measurement and location from the list. The measurement headers can also be moved around by clicking and dragging.

To remove a measurement that has already been added, highlight the header and press Remove.

#### Save Config

Saves the specific measurement names. This is useful if you frequently export a particular format.

#### **Include Measurement Headers**

Check this box if you would like the measurement headers to be exported along with the data.

Only Export those Shots with Part Measurement Entries Check this box if you would like to only export the Part Measurement data.

NOTE Data Export works with summary data only.

When finished, press *Export*.



# eDART Process Setup

This section describes how to set up a process on your *eDART* by using either an existing process or by creating a new process.

#### In This Chapter

- 58 Select Existing Process
- 59 Create New Process
- 61 Alarm Limits
- 63 Remove Alarm
- 64 Adjust Alarm Levels Automatically
- 65 Adjust Alarm Levels Manually
- 66 Sorting Actions
- 67 Control Settings
- 69 Excessive Reject Tab

### **Select Existing Process**

If you have a process setup from a previous run, simply select it from the list. The *eDART* will remember saved setups from previous runs. It is not necessary to enter a new process when you restart a job.



- A: Click on the "Setup" Button.
- **B:** Click on the Process that you would like to run.
- C: Click the "Begin" button when Machine, Mold, and Process are selected.

### **Create New Process**

Only create new setup if something has changed in your process that will affect alarm settings or the timing of the part segregation device. Saving a new setup for the new process allows you to get back to the old process at a later time if necessary.



- A: Click on the "Setup" button from the Home Page of the *eDART*.
- B: Click on the "Create New Process Button".

### Create New Process con't.

When "Create New Process" is selected, the Basic Process setup screen will appear.

MENU LOGIN		<b>P</b> HELP	RJG CHAT
Process Setup Step 1 of 4			8
BASIC	ALARM LIMITS	SORTING ACTIONS	CONTROL SETTINGS
		ess Settings input notes about Process	
A B C	Setup Name: Standard Cycle Time: 30.00 se Notes:	conds	

- **A:** Enter the Process Name.
- B: Enter the Standard Cycle Time for this process
- **C:** Enter any notes about the process
- D: Click on 'NEXT' to go to the next page

### **Alarm Limits**

When the "Next" button is selected the "Alarm Limits" tab will open to allow for process configuration.

This configuration will include the addition of Process Alarms/Warnings and Part Diverter/Robot Signal Controls.

When a process alarm or warning is added, the *eDART* will display both a low and high alarm. These alarm levels can be set either automatically or manually based on actual part characteristics.

Proc	ess Setup	Step 2 of 4						X
	BASIC	ALA	RM LIMITS	SORTIN	IG ACTIONS	CONTR	OL SETTINGS	
	Alarm Limit Settings Choose Alarm variables and set upper and lower limits							
		Cycle Name	Туре	Value	Low	High	Units	
		Fill Speed	Alarm	Invalid	26.00	29.50	in/sec.	
		Fill Speed	Warning	Invalid	27.00	29.00	in/sec.	
		Cycle Time	Alarm	Invalid	19.00	23.50	sec.	
		Fill Time	Alarm	Invalid	0.2758	0.2987	sec.	V
		Fill Time	Warning	Invalid	0.2783	0.2962	sec.	
								$\forall$
	AUTO-SET AUTO-SET AUTO-SET AUTO-SET							
	Васк					CANCEL	NEXT	

A: Click on the "Add Alarm" Button. When "Add Alarm" Button is selected the *eDART* will display the list of available alarms. All values will show "Invalid" until the process is actually running.

	BASIC	ARM LIMITS	SORTIN	IG ACTIONS	CONTR	OL SETTINGS
	с	Alarm L noose Alarm variables	imit Settings and set upper and l	ower limits		
	Cycle Name	Туре	Value	Low	High	Units
	Fill Speed	Warning	28.10	27.00	29.00	in/sec.
	Cycle Integral:Injection Pressure	Alarm	3201	3199	3205	psi-s
	Cycle Integral:Injection Pressure	Warning	3201	3200	3205	psi-s
	Cycle Time	Alarm	24.04	19.00	23.50	sec.
	Fill Time	Alarm	0.2940	0.2758	0.2987	sec.
	Fill Time	Warning	0.2940	0.2783	0.2962	sec.
(	AUTO-SET				ADD ALARM	REMOVE

The same screen can be accessed from within a running process using the Options Menu.

### Alarm Limits cont.

				Add	l Alarms	
	Add	Alarms	(	A Machine	Mold	Material
(	A Machine	Mold Material		Fill Speed A Fill Time A Hold Time O		
	Fill & Pack Integral			Peak Process Time	Hydraulic Injection	
	Fill & Pack Time Injection Integral			Shot Stroke Minimum Static Pressure Loss	Shot Stroke	Θ
В	Peak	End of Cavity #1		Value at V1->V2 Xfer.		
	Process Time Recovery Integral	End of Cavity #3 $\bigcirc$	D	CANCEL		DONE
	Static Pressure Loss C	End of Cavity #6		Ado	d Alarms	
	Value at V1->V2 Xfer.	End of Cavity #Avg 🕞		Screw Runtime ©		
	CANCEL	APPLY	E			

A: Click on the button that represents the type of alarm to be added.

**Machine** alarms include any machine based variable the *eDART* can calculate. Fill Time, Cycle Time, etc...

Mold alarms include any mold based variable, Peak End of Cavity, Pack Rate, etc...

**Material** alarms would include changes to the material, Effective Viscosity, Screw Recovery, etc...

- **B:** Click on the Alarm type from the list. If there are more than one variable of that type the *eDART* will display the location choices to the right of the type.
- **C:** Choose the desired location from this area.
- **D:** Click on this icon to toggle between alarm types: Alarm, Warning, Alarm and Warning.

Hold Time	⊖ No Alarm
Shot Stroke	🔺 Warning Alarm
Cycle Time	🜲 Reject Alarm
Fill Speed	🔈 Reject and Warning Alarm

### **Remove Alarm**

All alarms added to the process will be displayed on the "Alarm Limits" tab. From this tab you can edit the levels for your alarms both manually and automatically and remove alarms

BASIC		RM LIMITS	SORTING ACTIONS CON		CONTR	TROL SETTINGS	
	Choo	Alarm Li ose Alarm variables	mit Settings and set upper and	lower limits			
	Cycle Name	Туре	Value	Low	High	Units	
	Average Value:End of Cavity Cycle Integral	Alarm	Invalid	23271	23487	%	
	Average Value:End of Cavity Cycle Integral	Warning	Invalid	23295	23463	%	
	Fill Speed	Alarm	Invalid	26.00	29.50	in/sec. 🗸	
	Fill Speed	Warning	Invalid	27.00	29.00	in/sec. 🗸	
	Cycle Integral:Injection Pressure	Alarm	Invalid	3199	3205	psi–s ⊽	
	Cycle Integral:Injection Pressure	Warning	Invalid	3200	3205	psi-s 🗸	
AUTO-SET ADD REMOVE ALARM ALARM							

- A: Click on the check box next to the alarm to be removed.
- **B:** Click on the "Remove Alarm" button.

### **Adjust Alarm Levels Automatically**

Once Process Alarms are added, use the Alarm Limits page to adjust the limit levels. This can be done automatically or manually based on the part characteristics.



- A: Click on the check box for each variable alarm that you want to adjust automatically.
- B: Click on the "Auto-Set" button.
- C: Enter the desired statistical level for the alarms selected to be adjusted.
- D: Enter the number of shots to use for the level adjustment.
- E: Click on the "Set button".
- F: Click on the "Next" button on the main Alarm Limit page.
- RJG, Inc. eDART® Software

### **Adjust Alarm Levels Manually**

Most plastic parts have a very specific set of criteria that needs to meet to be considered a Good Part. The most accurate way to set alarms in the *eDART* is based on in-cavity variables and actual part dimensions. The *eDART* system has many tools to aid in the selection of these alarm variables. Once the alarm variables are identified, a simple high-low study can be executed to determine the correct alarm level based on part measurements. Always pull the levels in some to insure the alarms are conservative.

BASIC	LARM LIMITS	SORTI	NG ACTIONS	CONTR	OL SETTINGS
с	Alarm Li hoose Alarm variables	imit Settings and set upper and	lower li	В	
Cycle Name	Туре	Value	Low	High	Units
Fill Speed	Warning	Invalid	27.00	29.00	in/sec.
Cycle Integral:Injection Pressure	Alarm	Invalid	3199	3205	psi-s 🛆
Cycle Integral:Injection Pressure	Warning	Invalid	3200	3205	psi-s bar-s
Cycle Time	Alarm	Invalid	19.00	23.50	kgf/cm²-s MPa-s
Fill Time	Alarm	Invalid	0.2758	0.2987	Pa-s sec.
Fill Time	Warning	Invalid	0.2783	0.2962	sec.
AUTO-SET			0.2.00	ADD	REMOVE

- A: Enter the value for the Low alarm in this box. Parts with a value below this level should be too small or short.
- B: Enter the value for the High alarm in this box. Parts with a value above this level should be dimensionally too big.
- C: Use the drop-down menu to choose the units in which the values are to be displayed.
- D: When all alarms have been added and the levels have been set, click on the "Next" button to continue to the next portion of the set-up.

### **Sorting Actions**

When the "Next" button is selected the *eDART* will display the "Sorting Actions" Window. This window will allow for input on how to treat the sorting output signal to insure the parts reach their proper destination.

Process Setup Step 3 of 4	1			×			
BASIC	ALARM LIMITS	SORTING ACTIONS	CONTROL SETTINGS				
Sort Settings Set timing and options for part segregation							
(A) . H	Diverter Tim	<b>ing Controls</b>					
B ⊻ ⁺		econds after end of mold clamped hot(s) after machine has been down					
D	Delay diverter outputs for	1 cycle(s)					

- A: Check this box to hold the part diverter in one position until there is a change in the alarm state.
- B: Check this box and enter the amount of time for the contact to be held closed when a good part signal is generated.
- C: To use the "Reject After Down" feature, check this box and enter number of parts to be rejected after the Machine has been down.
- D: To use the "Diverter Delay" feature, check this box and enter the number of cycles that you would like to delay the output. Use this feature for conveyers that have many parts on it before the diverter device or over-mold processes that have alarms set on the 1st shot.

### **Control Settings**

This page allows the user to configure how alarms are calculated. It also contains the settings for additional control output configurations. This page allows for the modification of Integration limits and for configuration so that you can see a temperature drop instead of temperature rise in LSR or other thermo-set materials.

Process Setup Step 4 of 4	1		×
BASIC	ALARM LIMITS	SORTING ACTIONS	CONTROL SETTINGS
A Computations Excessive Rejects	Set integration limits ar	Settings d additional sorting tools	vity C D

A: Click on the "Computations" tab.

**B:** The value that you enter here will set the pressure at which the *eDART* stops calculating Cavity Fill time.

- **C:** Click on the drop down menu to choose the sensor to be used for Cavity fill time calculations. The *eDART* default is set to 1000 PSI at the End of Cavity. This value is valid for most thermoplastics.
- **D:** Click on the drop down menu to choose the Integration Limit. This is the place where the Cycle Integrals calculation ends. This is where the *eDART* calculates the value and sends out the Good Part/ Bad Part signal to the part segregation device.
- E: For a complete list of options click on "More".

Screw Run End: Most Robots look for a Good Part/ Bad Part signal at this time.

Injection Start: If the robot or part segregation device needs to see the signal at a different time use Injection Start and put the end time in the Integration Limit Offset Time.

Mold Clamped End: This setting will capture the integral for the entire cycle, but the Good Part/ Bad Part Signal output will be too late for most robots.

### **Control Settings cont.**

#### **Integration Settings**

Computations Excessive Rejects	Consider cavity full when 1000 plastic pressure reaches End of cavity pressure integrals and	P
	Integration Limit End:	Screw Run End
	Peak Computation Option:	Integration Limit
	Start of Injection + x seconds	10.00
	Injection Forward delay after M	0.00 B
	Falling Temperation Detection	
	Less	

A: Click on the drop down menu to choose the time that the *eDART* looks for Peaks within the cycle.

**Integration Limit** – the *eDART* will look for peak pressures at the Integration Limit set in step 3. **End of Injection** – the *eDART* will calculate peak pressures at the end of hold.

- **B:** If using the" Injection Start" option for the Integration Limit, enter the Integration limit time here.
- C: Click on this check box if monitoring thermo-set materials like LSR.

### **Excessive Reject Tab**

The Excessive Reject tool allows you to stop the Machine if you make more than a set number of rejects in a set number of cycles.

The Excessive Rejects Tool requires the use of 1 side of an OR2-D module wired to the Injection Circuit of the Machine.

Process Setup Step 4 of 4			$\bigotimes$
BASIC	ALARM LIMITS	SORTING ACTIONS	CONTROL SETTINGS
		Settings I additional sorting tools	
Computations Excessive Rejects	Output is: O Off <u>Gear Output</u> D	5 rejects within 10 conser	cutive cycles B

- A: Click on the "Excessive Rejects" tab.
- **B:** Enter the criteria to stop the Machine.
- **C:** This light will turn green when the output is actuated.
- **D:** When the "Excessive Reject Output" fires to prevent the machine from injecting it is necessary to click on "Clear Output" before the machine will be allowed to inject.
- E: Click on the "Finish" button when all of the Tabs have been completed.



# eDART Overview Screen

This section describes the features found in the *eDART* Overview Screen

#### In This Chapter

- 71 Overview
- 72 Error Display
- 73 Process Match Variable
- 74 Cycle History
- 75 Options Tab
- 76 Quality Sampling Tool
- 77 Process Settings
- **78** Velocity to Pressure Transfer Tool
- 82 Saving Master Setup
- 84 Add Note Tool

7/15/2016 Rev. E.5.6

### **Overview**

After the Mold, Machine and Process is selected on the Job setup screen and the job is started, this screen will appear. From this screen you can navigate to any part of the *eDART* including the setup screens if the job is stopped.



A: This information bar will show any errors that the *eDART* can identify. Click on "Dismiss" to remove warning.

- B: Click on this arrow to display all error messages.
- C: Options tab will allow access of tools like the Part Sampling tool and the Velocity to Pressure Transfer tool along with setup options, summary note entry screen, and save new setup screen.
- D: Stop the job using this button.
- E: This tab displays the Process Match status. Details about the Mold, Machine, and Material matches are available.
- F: Animation of press functions. The animation will move with the machine and process.
- G: The green and red boxes at the bottom of the screen will indicate your part count. Number of good parts will show in the green area and number of reject parts will show in the red area.
- H: Cycle Alarm note. For each reject cycle a note will be displayed showing which variable limit was exceeded.
- I: Cycle history. This will display the alarm state for each of the last 100 shots.

### **Error Display**



The *eDART* will display error messages at the top of the screen.

- A: Check this bar to see error messages.
- **B:** Click on this arrow to display more error messages. When the arrow is selected the error message window will expand to show more messages.
- **C:** Click on "Dismiss" to remove each warning.
#### **Process Match Variable**

The Process Match is determined by the alarm and warning limits that have been set on key variables.



- A: Displays green, red or yellow based on the Process Match. Click on the "Stability" tab to access the template match values.
- **B:** Click on the button for the Process Match information you wish to access.
- **C:** You can look at the template match numbers for the Mold, Machine or the Material values that have exceeded the alarm will highlight in red or yellow. Mold match will open the graphics screens.

RJG, Inc. eDART® Software

# **Cycle History**

The Cycle history for the last 100 shots will be displayed at the bottom of the Main *eDART* screen. Good shots will show as green and Reject shots will show in red. Part counts for both good and reject shots will also be displayed for the whole run.



- A: Reject Parts count
- B: Good Parts count
- C: Visual display of alarm status for last 100 shots
- **D:** Click on the note to display details for the reject cycle.

# **Options Tab**

The "Options" tab on the *eDART* Overview screen will allow access to job setup as well as tools used during processing.



# **Quality Sampling Tool**

The "Quality Sampling" tool will allow you to take sample parts and later correlate the part to the data for that part. This tool marks the shots as samples and creates a new data set.

	Quality Sampling	
	Process Settings	Quality Sampling Tool
Options	V to P Control	Mark next 10 shots as a sample
	Save Master Setup	C Sample Name:
	Add Note	Notes:
ľ		E Divert these samples Reject samples E
		F START Sample Complete DONE

## **Process Settings**

Clicking on the "Process Settings" button will open the Alarm Limits and Part Sorting control pages.



- A: You can add alarms, change alarm levels and adjust part sorting controls from this window.
- **B:** Click on Tab you wish to edit.
- **C:** Enter changes to the limits.
- **D:** Any changes made here will be retained until the job is stopped. Once the job is stopped, the changes will be lost unless you save them as a new Master Setup.

\*See "Save as Master Setup" section.

## **Velocity to Pressure Transfer Tool**

The Velocity to Pressure Transfer Control Tool allows input of cavity pressure set-points for external Velocity to Pressure Transfer. One side of an OR2-D module will need to be wired to the external transfer input on the Machine.

Click V to P Control, to view where the In-Mold sensor and set-points are selected and set. These controls include Cavity Pressure and Cavity Temperature sensors.





# **Velocity to Pressure Transfer Tool cont.**

When "Add Control" is clicked a window will appear that contains all of the available in Cavity control sensor.

	Add Velocity To	Pressure Controls
		Mold
<b>(B)</b>	Plastic Pressure	End of Cavity #4;A
	Ejector Pin Force	Post Gate #2;A
	More	End of Cavity #2;A
		Post Gate #1;A 🗹 C
		End of Cavity #High
		End of Cavity #Low
		End of Cavity #Avg
		End of Cavity #Rng 🗹 🔽
	CANCEL	DDDONE

#### Velocity to Pressure Transfer Tool cont.

MENU LOGIN	Velocity to Press	ure Controls	P HELP R	G CHAT
Graph Controls Template Contr	ols		🔲 Overlay	/S 👄 Zoom 🛨 💋
PP, Injection PP, End of Cavity #2 PP, End of Cavity #3				0.36,360 (T=0.375) 0.387 (T=0.395) 5030 (T=5175) 3310 (T=3540) 3120 (T=3310) 3030 (T=3160) 2930 (T=3210) 2950 (T=3100)
PP, End of Cavity #11 PP, End of Cavity #10				2807 (T-3100) 2807 (T-3100) 2800 (T-3030) 2800 (T-3030) 2800 (T-3020)
V None	_) <b>\$</b>			
0.00 sec.	ul 14, 12 : 21 : 45	1		0.431
Sensor Name	Status	Setpoint	Units	Enable
E End of Cavity #Avg	F Inactive	H 3000	psi	GI
First stage time exceeds	Inactive	0.50	SEC.	
Injection Pressure exceeds	Inactive	10000.00	psi	
Injection Volume exceeds	Inactive	0.10	cu. in	
Add a Control	V−>P Xfer Test	r Control Output is 🔘		CANCEL APPLY J

- E: Selected Control sensor will be displayed in this box.
- F: Status of control will show in this box. This will turn to "Active" if it is the first set-point achieved.
- **G:** Check this box to enable the set-point control for that sensor.
- **H:** Enter set-point for control.
- I: To remove a control, highlight the row for that control and click the "Remove Control" button.

#### Velocity to Pressure Transfer Tool cont.

#### **Secondary Controls Tab**

MENU LOGIN	Velocity to Press	ure Controls	P HELP R	JG CHAT
Graph Controls Template Contr	ols		🔳 Overlay	
PP, Injection				0.30.368 (T=0.375) 0.387 (T=0.395) 5030 (T=5175)
PP, End of Cavity #2	1			3310 (T=3540) 3120 (T=3310) 3120 (T=3160)
PP, End of Cavity #3		the second s		2970 (T=3210) 2960 (T=3100) 2870 (T=3100)
PP, End of Cavity #11		·	1 million	2800 (T=3030)
PP, End of Cavity #10				
✓ None	) <b>¢</b>			
0.00 sec.	Jul 14, 12 : 21 : 45			0.431
Sensor Name	Status	Setpoint	Units	Enable
End of Cavity #Avg	Inactive	3000	psi	
First stage time exceeds	Inactive	(L) 0.50	SEC.	✓ K)
Injection Pressure exceeds	Inactive	10000.00	psi	
Injection Volume exceeds	Inactive	0.10	cu. in	
Add a Control Remove Control	/->P Xfer Test	er Control Output is 🔘		

- **K:** Check the box to enable set-point. More than 1 can be selected for additional backups.
- L: Enter set-point values for each control backup selected.
- **M:** Use this button to test the control output. Click on the "Test Controls" button, the light should turn green and the LED on the OR2-D module should also light.

The Velocity to Pressure Transfer Control tool will transfer the machine to pressure control based on which set-point it sees first. Therefore, any set-point that is enabled will become a backup in case the cavity pressure fails.



## **Saving Master Setup**

If new templates, alarms or control set-points are needed for a new material, color or cavitation, you can save the settings as a new Master Setup. If the changes are temporary for this run, do not save a new Master Setup and settings will be returned to the original Master Setup when the job is stopped.



- A: Click on the "Save as New Setup" button from the options tab on the *eDART* overview screen of the *eDART*.
- **B:** Check this box if you want to overwrite the previous setup with the new changes.
- C: Check this box if you want to save the process changes as a new setup for the Mold.
- **D:** Click one "SAVE" to save the process changes. If you click "CANCEL", no changes will be saved.

#### Save as Master Setup cont.

When the "Create new Setup" check-box is selected the window will open up to allow entry of the name and notes for the new process.

	You've changed the current setup. Would you like to save this as a new setup?
	Modify this setup
	A Create new setup
В	Setup Name: test
	Notes:
	11-10-11
	С
	CANCEL SAVE D

- A: Check this box to save the setup as a new setup.
- **B:** Enter the name of the new setup.
- **C:** Enter any notes that you would like to save with the setup.

## Add Note Tool

When the "Add Note" button is selected the *eDART* will open the Note entry window. The Note will be saved on the last cycle on the Summary Graph and will be available to view from there as well as in analyzer during data analysis.



- A: Click on the "Add Note" button from the Options tab on the Main *eDART* Screen.
- **B:** Enter the note content in this box.



# Cycle Graph

This section describes the features found in the *eDART* Cycle Graph portion of the software.

#### In This Chapter

- 86 Cycle Graph
- **88** Graph Control Menu Auto Scale Curves
- 88 Set Fill Volume at Cursor
- 88 Set Volume Zero at Cursor
- 89 Adding Curves
- 93 Template Controls
- 94 Individual Curve Menu

9/1/2015 Rev. E.7.0

# Cycle Graph

The Cycle Graph is where the real time data is displayed visually. All active sensors will be available to view in the graphical, real time form.



- A: Main Graph Area. All real time curves will be displayed in this area.
- B: Curve Help Screen. This screen shows sample curves and gives descriptions of important features of each curve.
- **C:** Time span visible on the graph. These values can be changed to show any portion of the graph in detail.
- D: On/Off signals including triggers, control outputs and sorting outputs, can be displayed in this portion of the graph.
- E: Click this button to maximize or minimize the Cycle Graph.



#### Cycle Graph cont.



- F: Use the plus and minus signs to zoom in and out. The graph will always start from 0 seconds as you zoom.
- G: Click this button to overlay all future cycles on the display.
- **H:** Each Curve displayed on the Cycle Graph will have a Curve Identification button. The Curve name will be displayed on the button and will be the color of the curve.
- I: Cursor. The cursor can be placed on the graph to view values for curves at specific times.
- J: Time into the cycle will be displayed at the top of the cursor.
- **K:** Time Date Stamp for the present shot is displayed here. All shots are differentiated with a time date stamp.
- L: Machine I/O, Summary Data Table, and Summary Bar Chart can all be access and displayed by clicking on the arrow on this bar.
- M: Click on this gear after selecting your data type. The selection list for that data set will pop up.

## **Graph Control Menu Auto Scale Curves**

$(\mathbf{A})$	Graph Controls Template Controls		Overlays	\ominus zoom 🕂 💋
$\simeq$	Graph Controls	1.478		
(B)	Auto Scale A			
$\smile$	Set Fill Volume at Cursor			
	Set Volume Zero at Cursor			
	Add a Curve	5000 3333 3324		
	PP, End of Cavity #Low	1698 1695		Options
	▽ None	<b>*</b>		
	0.00 sec. Sep 0	2,07:17:13		6.29

- A: Click on the "Graph Controls" Menu.
- B: Click on "Auto Scale" from the menu. The curves will automatically scale fit the screen.

#### Set Fill Volume at Cursor

The *eDART* uses the area under the fill portion of the Injection Curve as an Effective Viscosity Measurement as the area varies directly with variation in viscosity. This value is correct only when calculated during the dynamic fill portion of the cycle. To insure that this is calculated at an appropriate place, the volume at transfer needs to be entered into the *eDART*.

PP, Injection PP, End of Cavity #High PP, End of Cavity #Ligh Graph Controls Graph Controls	(B)			
PP, Injection PP, End of Cavity #High PP, End of Cavity #Low Graph Controls	Graph Controls Temp	olate Controls	Overlays	\ominus zoom 🛨 💋
PP. End of Cavity #Low				
PP. End of Cavity #Low	PP, End of Cavity #High		-	
	PP, End of Cavity #Low			
PP, End of Cavity #Rng Set Fill Volume at Cursor	PP, End of Cavity #Rng	Set Fill Volume at Cursor	\	
	PP, End of Cavity #1			Options
Add a Curve	▼ None			

- A: Place the Cursor at transfer on the Cycle Graph.
- **B:** Click on the "Graph Controls" Menu or right click on the cursor.
- **C:** Click on "Set Fill Volume at Cursor". The *eDART* will use the volume measurement at that point as an ending point for the Effective Viscosity Measurements.

#### Set Volume Zero at Cursor

This is active only when you do not have automatic Screw Run trigger on your machine. It is used to provide a zero volume value to the *eDART*.

## **Adding Curves**

A	Graph Controls Template Controls			🗖 Overlays	Θ	Zoom	Ð	
$\mathbf{i}$	Graph Controls	1.4	78					
	Auto Scale A							
	Set Fill Volume at Cursor							
	Set Volume Zero at Cursor							
В	Add a Curve		5000 3333 3324					
	PP, End of Cavity #Low		1698					Options
	V None	\$						
	0.00 sec. Sep (	02, 07 : 17	7:13					6.29

- A: Click on the "Graph Controls" menu.
- **B:** Click on "Add a Curve". When "Add a Curve" is selected the *eDART* will display the Add Cycle Data.

	A	dd Cycle Data	
	C Machine	Mold	Material
	Hydraulic Pressure		
<b>D</b>	Plastic Pressure	Injection	✓ (E)
$\bigcirc$	Stroke		
	Volume		
			·
:	CANCEL	APPLY	DONE

- **C:** Click on the button that represents the type of curve to be added. Machine or Mold Curves will be available for each sensor connected to the system.
- **D:** Choose the type of sensor curve to be added.
- E: Choose which location you would like to display for the variable type selected.
- **F:** Click on "Done" to have these changes take place.

#### Machine I/O, Summary Data Table, and Summary Bar Chart

These functions can be used in the split screen format but they are best used and viewed by clicking on the arrow in the upper right corner and bringing Cycle Graph to a full screen view. (A)



- A: Bring screen to full view
- **B:** Click on the down arrow to see the list of options to view
- **C:** Click on the type of Data that you would like to view.
- D: Before you can see the data, you need to click on the "gear" to the right of the tool bar. It will bring up the options for whichever data set you have chosen to view. (Not for Summary Bar Chart).
- E: From this list, select the specific things you wish to see. Click on "Save" to view your choices.



#### Machine I/O

The Inputs or Outputs will be displayed in this area of the graph.

- > The thin line signifies the signal is off.
- > The wide solid line signifies the signal is on.

Machine Sequence will display the machine triggers

Injection Forward, Screw Run, Mold Clamped, etc...

Control Outputs will display Control outputs from the eDART

> V>P Transfer, Excessive Reject output.

Sorting Outputs will display the signals sent to the robot or containment device

Good Part outputs, etc...

#### Summary Data Table

- A: Click on the down arrow
- **B:** Select the Summary Data Table button
- **C:** Click on the "gear" button to the right of the selection drop down
- **D:** Choose the values you wish to view and click on "Done" when finished
- **E:** You should see a view similar to this after you click on the "Done".





#### **Summary Bar Chart**

Injection molds with hot runner manifolds can be notorious for being out of balance. To bring a mold into balance a molder typically tries running fill-only parts and adjusting tip temperatures until the parts are about the same size or weight. Summary Bar Graph helps simplify the troubleshooting when this happens.

- A: When using multiple In-cavity pressure sensors, the Summary Bar Chart will show balance over the tool using the sensors in each cavity.
- **B:** The viewer tool automatically sets up and scales the bars for the number and range of sensors found. You will not need to click on the gear to choose what you view.
- **C:** The Summary Bar Chart makes the visual process of balancing much simpler. You can see the high (fast filling) cavities and lower those temperatures while raising the tip temperatures for the lower bars until they all come into balance.
- D: Check the balance of other parts of the process using the tabs at the bottom of the screen: filling and packing, pressurization and mold temperature. If the mold has only temperature sensors (no pressure) you can see the balance of the time to reach the sensor ("Time @ temp...") and the mold temperature at that point (minimum).



- **E:** If significantly out of balance, you might see a screen looking like this.
- F: To bring the other column into view, you will need to un-check the "Auto Scale" and set the bottom value to "0".



#### RJG, Inc. eDART® Software

#### **Template Controls**

A Template is the blue print for your perfect part. When a template is created the *eDART* will display it on the cycle graph as a dotted line for each sensor. The *eDART* will also compare each future cycle to the template and calculate the difference between the template and the current cycle.

Before a Template is created the job should be soaked in and stable. Never create a template when job is first started. Fill Volume should be set at cursor before template is created.

	Graph Controls Template Controls	🔲 Overlays	\ominus zoom	⊕ ∅
	PP, Injecti C Save Template			
	PP, End of Cavity of Edit			
	PP, End of Cavity #4 ABC CO			
	PP, End of Cavity #Lor Material Test			Options
(A)	PP, End of Cavity #Hit MAY_CO			
$\smile$	D Nick			
	□ Polypro □ Smith_Co			
	Styrene			
	_test rig 2			
	✓ Machine I/O	tran		<u> </u>
	CO, V->P Transfer SMI, Injection Forward			
	SMI, Screw Run SMI, Mold Clamped			
	0.00 sec. Sep 02, 09 : 39 : 29			10.6

- A: Set up job and let it run until it is stable.
- **B:** Click on the "Template Controls" Menu.
- **C:** To save a Template, click on the "Save Template" button.
- **D:** To choose an existing template, click on the button in front of the name of the one you wish to choose. That will apply the template. To turn the template off, simply click on "None".
- **E:** Choose "Edit" to delete or re-name a current Template
- **F:** The limit is 10 templates. This message will appear when the limit has been reached. You will need to delete one in order to add any more.

E	ABC CO						
$\bigcirc$	Delete this Template: Delete						
	Rename To:						
the							
	Cancel						
	0						
too_many_templates							
	Continue						

### **Individual Curve Menu**

Each curve displayed on the Cycle Graph will have its own menu. The menu can be accessed by clicking on the header for the curve.



A: Click on the header for the curve to be modified.

When the curve menu is selected a window will appear with the options for curve modifications.

Graph Controls Template Controls	🔲 Overlays	\varTheta Zoom	Ð	
PP, Injection				
PP, End of Cavity #1				
PP, End of Cavity #4 EOC #4 (Plastic Pressure, End of Cavity #4) Settings				
PP, End of Cavity #Rng V Max Value 14900				<u> </u>
Machine I/O Min Value 0.00				3
SMI, Screw Run				
Set Units psi			Γ	10.6
Graph Controls A= Functions		🕞 Zoom	$\oplus$	$\square$
Tue Sep 1 12:00:01         Remove Curve         Ok	Cancel			
Injection Pressure		when the me	non l	****

#### Individual Curve Menu cont.

	EOC #4 (Plastic Pressure, End of Cavity #4) Settings				
	- Scaling Max Value 14900 ♥ A Min Value 0.00 ♥				
	= Visual Set Curve Color B Set Units psi C				
	= Functions Remove Curve	E Ok Cancel			
В	Color Color Save as Standard Colors	psi C psi bar kgf/cm² MPa Pa			

- A: Scale the graph limits by changing these values with either the arrow buttons or directly enter new values.
- **B:** Click on the color button to change the curve color. Choose the new color from the color window.
- **C:** Choose the units that you would like to display from the drop down menu.



# **Summary Graph**

This section describes the features found in the *eDART* Summary Graph Screen

#### In This Chapter

- 97 Summary Graph
- 98 Auto Scale All Curves
- 98 Add A Curve
- 99 Remove All Curves
- 100 Add Note at Cursor
- **101** Individual Curve Configuration

7/3/2014 Rev. E.6.0

#### **Summary Graph**

The Summary Graph will track one variable over time. The variable value will be plotted each cycle, therefore trends can be observed using this graph.



- A: Graph Controls Menu- Use this menu to manage all Summary graph curves.
- **B:** Variable header Variable identification and menu for individual variable curve.
- **C:** Note Notes can be saved with the Summary data. The notes will be displayed in this area.
- **D:** Time and Cycle count button Click this button to display Cycle Total, Cycle Shown, Time Shown, or Time Total.
- E: Data Range The data displayed on the graph was created between these dates and times.
- F: Cursor Place the cursor by left clicking on a cycle or use arrow keys on the keyboard.
- **G:** Full Screen Use this arrow button to maximize or minimize the graph.
- H: Zoom Use the and + buttons to zoom into the data.
- I: Time/Date Stamp The time/date stamp for the shot will be displayed at the top of the cursor.
- **J:** Add Note Notes can be added at cursor location and saved with data.
- K: Data View Click on any point in a curve on the Summary Graph and the data from that point will be displayed
- L: Use the Drop down to change what data set you wish to view.

#### **Auto Scale All Curves**

A	Graph Controls Add	Note C	Zoom	Ð	$\bigcirc$
$\times$	Graph Controls				IZ SI
<b>(B)</b>	Auto Scale All Curves	Auto Scale On C	1		
$\square$	Add A Curve	Auto Scale Off	man	him	v
	Remove All Curves	energenergenergenergenergenergenergener	MALAM	minho	1
	Injection Pressure			11	
	27 Volume at Fill In Cavity #6	and the second	NWW	www.	•
	Notes-> Scrollbar->	· ·			
	Time Shown 2:31 Mon	Jun 30 11:37:13	Mon Jun 3	0 14:08:	37

- A: Click on the "Graph Controls" Menu.
- **B:** Click on "Auto Scale All Curve". The *eDART* will scale all of the curves on the graph to fit the screen.
- C: Choose to turn auto-scale on or off.

#### Add A Curve

	Graph Controls Add M	lote	⊖ Z00	m 🕀	
$\bigcirc$	Graph Controls				1.00
	s Auto Scale All Curves	Auto Scale On			$\square$
<b>(B)</b>	Add A Curve	Auto Scale Off		m	~~
	Remove All Curves	which was a supported and a partition of the second of the	maryan	mmu	m
	Volume at Fill In Cavity #6	www.man.www.man.www.www.www.www.www.	harma	WWW	<u>-</u>
	Notes-> Scrollbar->				
	Time Shown 2:31 Mon	un 30 11:37:13	Mon J	lun 30 14:0	8:37

- A: Click on the "Graph Controls" menu.
- B: Click on "Add A Curve".

#### Add A Curve con't.

Add Summary Data						
A	Machine		Mold	Material		
B	Peak	>	End of	Cavity #2;AN		
	More		Mid	Cavity #1;A N C		
			Post	Gate #1;A N		
			Post	Gate #2;A N		
				More		
	CANCEL			DONE		

- A: Click on appropriate button for desired variable. Machine, Mold, or Material.
- **B:** Click on the desired variable type from the left column.
- **C:** Click on the check box for the desired sensor location from the right column.

#### **Remove All Curves**



- A: Click on the "Graph Controls" button.
- B: Click on "Remove all Curves".

#### Add Note at Cursor

Notes can be added anywhere in the data using the "Add Note at Cursor" function. The notes are saved with the data and can be read any time the data is analyzed.





- A: Position the cursor at the cycle where the note is to be added.
- B: Click on "Add Note". The add note box will appear when "Add Note" is selected.
- **C:** Type note in this area.
- **D:** Click on the "Save" button.
- E: The note will be displayed here. To read the note displayed, click on it.

### **Individual Curve Configuration**

The color, scaling, etc. can be configured for each summary variable.

	Graph Controls Add Note	
A	Sequence Time Fill Time	Peak, Injection Pressure
	Peak Injection Pressure	
	psi/s	- Visual Set Color Set Units psi Set Units
	psi/s bar/s kgf/cm²/s MPa/s	Alarms Lower Upper F Add Alarm 0.00 0.00 Remove Alarm H Add Warning 0.00 0.00 Remove Warning H
	Pa/s	- Functions  Remove Curve  J Ok Cancel

- A: Click on the header for the curve to be altered. When the curve header is selected a menu for the curve configuration will appear.
- **B:** Enter custom curve scaling here.
- **C:** Check this box if you would like to use the auto-scale feature.
- **D:** Click on the color box to change the curve color.
- **E:** Set units for displayed curve be clicking on the drop down button. Choose the units that you would like to display.
- F: Add Alarm

177

- G: Add Warning
- H: Remove Alarm or Warning
- I: Remove selected Curve



# eDART Settings Button

This section describes the features found in the Settings protion of the *eDART* software.

#### In This Chapter

- 103 eDART Settings Button
- 104 Manage Machines
- 104 Manage Molds/Setups
- 106 Configure eDART
- 107 Networking Setup
- 109 Serial Ports

5/31/2012 Rev. E.5.5

## eDART Settings Button

From anywhere in the *eDART* you can access the settings pages. The settings button will be at the top of the screen. This button will allow access of the networking setup, Mold and Machine management, security and software version information.



- A: Open the *eDART* "Settings" menu.
- **B:** Set Security (see Security Section for more details).
- C: View machine list and delete unwanted machines.
- **D:** View Mold/Setup list and delete unwanted molds or settings.
- **E:** *eDART* serial number, type and software version.
- F: Set up the Network, languages, time, etc...

#### **Manage Machines**

The "Manage Machines" button allows the user to cleanup machines that are no longer in use.

М	achine	
	Machine Number/Name	e
1	test/test (A)	
2	mmm	
3	Barbara22	
4	Arburg 105	
5	Arburg 225 Ton	
6	fgzsdf	
7	control	
8	Manual Test	
9	Christopher 1	

- A: Select a Machine.
- **B:** Click on the "Delete" Button. Confirm the action when prompted.

#### Manage Molds/Setups

The "Manage Molds Setup" button will allow the user to cleanup Molds that are no longer in use.

	-	Mold Number/Name
	test A	•
2	ss V	
3	Manual Test	
ŀ	Chris 2	
<b>j</b>	no_crash	•

- **A:** To remove a Mold highlight the Mold to be removed.
- **B:** Click on the "Delete" button. Confirm the action when prompted.
- RJG, Inc. eDART® Software

#### Manage Molds/Setups cont.

The Manage Setups Tab will allow for management of processes saved.

Machine	Mold	Setup	Cavity	Run Stats	Last Run	
rburg 105 🛛 🗛	Machine102	123	4	9826473/0		$\Delta$
rburg 105	Manual Test	Merry Christmas Test	4	9826473/0		
rburg 105	Merry Christmas 2	Merry Christmas 3	4	9826473/0		
rburg 105	test	test 3	4	9826473/0		
rburg 105	test	123	4	9826473/0	►	

#### Select a Setup and Choose Action Below

- A: To select a setup, click on it to highlight.
- **B:** To delete the setup, select the "Delete" button. Confirm action when prompted.

#### Configure eDART

The *eDART* Configuration screen allows for configuration of network settings, Languages and *eDART* Ports.

	Configuration	1
General		
Network	Startup Language:	us english
Serial Ports		
	Keyboard Layout:	Canadian English
	Unit Defaults:	Metric C
	Time Zone:	(UTC + 1200)

- A: Use this drop down to choose the *eDART* Startup Language. German, French, Spanish, and English are available.
- **B:** Use this drop down menu to choose the keyboard style.
- **C:** Use this drop down menu to choose the default units.
- **D:** Use this drop down menu to choose the correct time zone for your area.

#### Networking Setup

*eDART* networking is set up from the Networking tab. Without the use of an *eDART* Data Manager the *eDART* will require static IP Addresses set to be on the network. If you are using an *eDART* Data Manager most things on this page can be made automatic from the EDM.

	Configuration	
General		
Network		
Serial Ports	IP Address: 192.168.5.80	Default Gateway:
	Subnet Mask: 255.255.0.0	Usability Test Coyle
	Node Number: 80 VE	
		Additional Network Gateways

A: If you are not using the RJG *eDART* Data Manager you will need to enter a static IP address to see the *eDART* on your network. If you are using an EDM you can configure the EDM to handle the addressing automatically.

**B:** If the *eDART* is connected through a switch or other smart device, you may need to enter the default gateway here to see the *eDART* on your network. If you are using an EDM you can configure the EDM to handle addressing automatically.

- **C:** If you are not using an EDM you will need to enter the subnet mask here. If you are using an EDM you can set the EDM to configure automatically.
- **D:** If you are using the EDM you have the option to use a tool called cross copy. The EDM will automatically copy setups initiated on the *eDART* to all other *eDART*s that have the same group name. Enter the group name here if you are using this option.

**E:** To change the node number, type the new Node number here. You must reboot the *eDART* for the new Node number to take effect.

**F:** To add additional Gateways, click on the "Additional Network Gateways" button.

#### Networking Setup cont.

#### **Additional Gateways**

	Additional Gatewa	у
Gateway:	Destination:	B Add C
192.168.5.221	10.11.12.0	
CANCEL		DONE

- A: Type in additional gate way IP address.
- **B:** Type in Destination address.
- **C:** Click on the "Add" button.
- **D:** Click on the minus sign to remove the gateway.

## **Serial Ports**

The "Configure Ports" tab will allow you to configure serial ports on the *eDART* for Touch Screens. The *eDART* will configure the touchscreen and add the controls to calibrate the touch screen.

	Cor	figuration	
General Network Serial Ports	A	COM 1 : None Touch Screen Smartset Touch Screen Intellitouch None COM 2 : None	B
ВАСК			SAVE

- A: Click on the "Serial Port" Tab in the Configurations Window.
- **B:** Choose the correct style of touch screen from the drop down menu.



# eDART Security

This section describes the features found in the *eDART* Security Section of the software.

#### In This Chapter

- 111 Security
- 112 Configure Groups
- 113 Configure Users
- **114** Change Password or Security Level

5/31/2012 Rev. E.5.5

# Security



**A:** Security is pre-set on critical functions. To set security levels for the *eDART* click on the 'Settings' button on the top right corner of your screen.

B: Then choose 'Configure Users'.

#### Administrator

The Administrator will come pre-set with access to everything and a separate password that can be changed once the *eDART* is in your facility.

#### **Configure Groups**

From this screen you can set the security levels for each group. Later you will assign each user to a specific group based on their security level and access.

Allow F	Allow Permissions by Checking Boxes				
Security Levels Users	B	<b>(C)</b>	D		
Security Item	Group_1	Group_2	Group_3		
Configure eDART	<b>√</b>			A	
Mold and Machine					
Process					
Save Template					
Security					
Set Fill Volume					
Start & Stop Job					
V->P Transfer				$\overline{\mathbf{\nabla}}$	
				SAVE	

- A: Select each software function for which a given group will have access.
- **B:** Select functions for basic users, such as Operators.
- **C:** Select functions for intermediate users, such as Process Technicians.
- D: Select functions for advanced users, such as Process Engineers.
- **E:** Save the selections. Enter the Administrator Password when prompted.

# **Configure Users**

Choose the "Users" tab to assign users into groups and establish passwords.

MER		ur	P RJG CHAT SETTINGS		
		Touch a User and Select an Action	n		
	Security Level	Users			
		Name	Security Level		
	1 Administr		Administrator		
				HELP	RJG CHAT SET
B	ACK			Touch a User and Select an Action	_
			ecurity Levels	User Details	
			Administrator	First Name:     Password:       John     C       John     C       Last Name:     Confirm Password:       Smith     B       Security Level:     John       Group_1     V	Level

- **A:** Click on the "Add" button.
- **B:** Enter User First and Last Name of User.
- **C:** Enter your password then again to Confirm.
- **D:** Select Security level for the user from the drop down menu.

#### **Change Password or Security Level**

Touch a User and Se	lect an Action
curity Levels Users	
Name	Security Level
Administrator	Administrator
John Jones	Group_1
Barbara Lockwood	Group_3
George Williams	Group_2
	ADD DELETE User Details First Name: Jones Security Level: Group_1 B SAVE
	Administrator John Jones Barbara Lockwood

- A: Click on the arrow beside the user profile to be modified.
- **B:** Choose the new security level from the drop down menu.
- **C:** Change the password by clicking on the 'Change Password' button.

**D:** Click on the 'Save' button when all information is entered correctly. Enter the Administrator password when prompted.



# Log Files and Raw Data Viewer

This section describes the features found in the Log Files and Raw Data Viewer sections of the *eDART* software.

#### In This Chapter

- 116 Audit Log
- 117 Diagnostic Page
- 118 Raw Data Viewer
- 119 Sensor Data Details

4/12/2012 Rev. E.5.4

# Audit Log

Changes made in the *eDART* can be seen on the Log page. The *eDART* will report what the change, when it was made and who made it as long as security is enabled.

	רח	n	(A)	
номе		Audit Log		Image: Non-State     Image: Non-State
Date/Time		Activity	User	Detail
2011/12/22 18:52:23		Sensor 08 040 00274:2: loc		
2011/12/22 18:52:23		Sensor 08 040 00274:2: type		
2011/12/22 18:52:23		Sensor 08 040 00274:5: loc		
2011/12/22 18:52:23		Sensor 08 040 00274:5: type		
2011/12/22 18:52:23		Sensor 08 040 00274:6: loc		
2011/12/22 18:52:23		Sensor 08 040 00274:6: type		
2011/12/22 18:52:23		Sensor 08 040 00274:7: loc		
2011/12/22 18:52:23		Sensor 08 040 00274:7: type		
2011/12/22 18:52:23		Sensor 03 305 00036:1: loc		
2011/12/22 18:52:23		Sensor 03 305 00036:1: type		
2011/12/22 19:07:47		Template Saved		
2011/12/22 20:20:05		Template Saved		
2011/12/22 22:04:20		Sensor 00 040 00087:2: loc		
2011/12/22 22:04:20		Sensor 00 040 00087:2: type		
2011/12/22 22:04:20		Sensor 00 040 00087:5: loc		
2011/12/22 22:04:20		Sensor 00 040 00087:5: type		

- A: Click on the arrows until the third dot is active. This is the Log page.
- **B:** Scroll to the time/data in which you are interested.

## **Diagnostic Page**

Н		ignostic		HELP RJG CHAT	SETTING
	Serial # 🔺	Attached to	Sensor Type	Location	Status
			Diagnostic Info	Port 1	Ok
			Diagnostic Info	Port 2	Error
Δ	0004000087:1	Machine	Seq. Module Input	Injection Forward	Valid
Δ	0004000087:2	Machine	Seq. Module Input	First Stage	Valid
	0004000087:3	Machine	Seq. Module Input	Screw Run	Valid
	0004000087:4	Machine	Seq. Module Input	Mold Clamped	Valid
	0004000087:5	Machine	Seq. Module Input	Mold Opening	Stale
	0004000087:6	Machine	Seq. Module Input	Machine in Manual	Valid
	0107500200:1	Machine	Control Output	V->P Transfer	Valid
Λ	0107500212:1	Machine	Sorting Output	Good Control	Valid

- A: Click on the arrows to get to fourth dot. This is the diagnostic page.
- **B:** Click on the triangle to display information about sensor status.



**C:** Click on the "View Raw Data" button to display more detailed information about the sensor.

#### **Raw Data Viewer**

When the triangle is selected a diagnostic will appear.

✔ Only Show Active Data	Refresh Rate (per second)	°∤ – – – – – – −1		' I <b> </b> 100	Data Detai	IS. B	)
S/N:Signal Attached to	Туре	Location	Value	Raw	Accuracy	Status	Last Chg Failu
01 075 00200:1 Machine	Control Output	V->P Transfer		0		Valid	
	Diagnostic Info	Port 1	6 sensors	438/sec.		Valid	4.079
04 224 00796:1 Mold	Ejector Pin Force	End of Cavity #1;A	0.000000	0	0.50 %	Valid	4.079
	Flow Rate	Injection	0.000000	0	0.04 %	Valid	2.639
01 300 00041:1 Machine	Hydraulic Pressure	Injection	-4.579	-5	1.00 %	Valid	4.051
	Plastic Pressure	End of Cavity #1;A	0.000000	0	0.50 %	Valid	4.086
	Plastic Pressure	Injection	-61.08	-5	1.00 %	Valid	4.051
00 040 00087:5 Machine	Seq. Module Input	Mold Closing	ON	1		Valid	2.414
00 040 00087:1 Machine	Seq. Module Input	Injection Forward		0		Valid	
00 040 00087:4 Machine	Seq. Module Input	Mold Clamped		0		Valid	
00 040 00087:6 Machine	Seq. Module Input	Machine in Manual		0		Valid	
00 040 00087:3 Machine	Seq. Module Input	Screw Run		0		Valid	
00 040 00087:2 Machine	Seq. Module Input	First Stage		0		Valid	
01 075 00212:1 Machine	Sorting Output	Good Control		0		Valid	
04 600 00127:1 Machine	Stroke	Injection	-0.1597	-127	0.04 %	Valid	2.529
	System Control Output	Operate		0		Valid	
04 600 00127:2 Machine	Velocity	Injection	0.000000	0	0.04 %	Valid	2.639
	Volume	Injection	-0.1305	-127	0.04 %	Valid	2.529

- A: Make sure that both check boxes are checked when checking sensors to eliminate un-needed data.
- **B:** Check this column to see the status of the sensor.
- **C:** To display more detailed information about the sensor, highlight the line for that sensor.
- D: Click on "Data Details".

#### **Sensor Data Details**

Ej	ector Pin Force, E	nd of Cavity #3;A 🛛 🕜 😣
Status: Invalid	Active: 🗸	Type Number: 11 Indirect:
Update Time:	1325615678.596	Location Number: 16 Invert:
Change Time:	1325601089.125	Data Type: integer
Update Interval:	3.9	mSec. Class: real time analog
Notify Proxy:	5107	Data Size: 4 Info Size: 84
S/N Changed Proxy:	0	Owner: Lynx_driver
Full Scale:	500.0	00 Units: pounds
Scale Factor:	0.152625	Current Offset: -409
Accuracy:	1.034 %	Initial Offset: -409 Signed: 📈
Resolution:	13 bits	Preload: 0.000 pounds 0.0 %
Serial Number:	100174	Channel Number: 1
Attached To:	Mold	Firmware Version: 2
Last Cal Date:	02/12/01	Lynx Protocol Version: 1
Next Cal Date:	02/12/02	Identifies Equipment Multiples 🗸
Data Type:	unsigned integer	

When "Data Details" is selected a window will open to show details for selected sensor